BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY of the COUNTY OF KAUA‘I

REGULAR MEETING

Second Floor, Microbiology Lab Bldg
Kaua‘i County Department of Water
4398 Pua Loke Street, Līhu‘e, Kaua‘i, Hawai‘i 96766

THURSDAY, MARCH 22, 2012
10:10 a.m.
Or soon thereafter
A.

CALL TO ORDER

B.

ROLL CALL

C.

ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA

D.

MEETING TRANSCRIPTS:
Review and approval of:
Special Board Meeting – February 9, 2012
Regular Board Meeting – February 23, 2012

E.

CORRESPONDENCE/ANNOUNCEMENTS
1. Letter from KMH LLP concerning the Audit

F.

BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS
1. Report of the Committee of the Whole of the Kauai County Board of Water Supply
a. Manager’s Report No. 12-24 – Emergency Operations Reserve Fund Policy
b. Manager’s Report No. 12–54 – Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy

G.

OLD BUSINESS
1. Manager’s Report No. 12-24 – Emergency Operations Reserve Fund Policy
2. Manager’s Report No. 12 –54 – Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy
3. Manager’s Report No. 12-63 - Rewards Program
4. Manager’s Report No. 12-64 – County Human Resources Reorganization
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REGULAR MEETING
March 22, 2012

H.

NEW BUSINESS
1. Draft FY2013 Budget
2. Manager’s Report No. 12 – 64 – Non-Potable water systems
3. Manager’s Report No. 12 – 65 - Job No. 05-06, BCP Construction, 10th Change Order for Eiwa,
Umi, Ekahi, Elua and Hardy Streets 8" Waterline Improvements (WP 2020 Project No. PLH-25),
Lihue
4. Manager’s Report No. 12 – 66 - Job No. 02-08, Oceanic Companies, 3rd Change Order, Rehabilitate
Eleele Twin 0.4 MG Steel Tanks (WP 2020 Project No. HE-08), Eleele
5. Managers’ Report No. 12 – 67 - Request Board Approval to Extend Funding of Staff Fitness
Program.
6. Manager’s Report No. 12 – 68 - Job No. 12-1, Esaki Surveying, (WP 2020 Job No. H-05), Weke,
Anae, Mahimahi and He'e Roads 6" and 8" Main Replacement (2,760'), Hanalei
7. Manager’s Report No. 12-69 - Request to Expend Funds from Contracted Capital Expenditures

I.

STAFF REPORTS
MONTHLY
1. Fiscal Report:
a. Statement of Kaua‘i County Water Department’s Revenues and Expenditures
b. Update on Schedule of Findings on FY2011 Audit
2. Report by the Public Relations Specialist on Public Relations Activities
3. Chief of Operation’s Summary Report on Monthly Operational Maintenance
4. Water Resources and Planning Subdivision Report
5. Manager’s Monthly Update Regarding Activities of Note of the Kaua`i County Water Department

J.

EXECUTIVE SESSION
Pursuant to H.R.S. §92-7(a), the Board may, when deemed necessary, hold an executive session
on any agenda item without written public notice if the executive session was not anticipated in
advance. Any such executive session shall be held pursuant to H.R.S. §92-4 and shall be limited to
those items described in H.R.S. §92-5(a).
1.

Pursuant to Haw. Rev. Stat §§92-4 and 92-5(a)(4) the purpose of this executive session is to
receive and consider a letter from the Department of Personnel Services to the United Public
Workers dated March 6, 2012. The purpose of this executive session is to consult with the
Board’s attorney on questions and issues pertaining to the Board’s powers, duties, privileges,
immunities, and liabilities as it relates to the Department of Personnel Services letter to the
United Public Workers dated March 6, 2012.
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J.

EXECUTIVE SESSION – contd.
2.
Pursuant to Hawai'i Revised Statutes Sections 92-4 and 92-5(a)(4), the purpose of this executive
session is to provide the Board with a briefing regarding the proposed employee rewards
program. This briefing and consultation with the Board counsel involves the consideration of
the powers, duties, privileges, immunities and/or liabilities of the Board and the Department as
they relate to this agenda item.
3.

4.

Pursuant to Haw. Rev. Stat. §§92-4 and 92-5(a)(4) the purpose of this executive session is to
consult with the Board’s attorney on questions and issues pertaining to the Board’s powers,
duties privileges, immunities, and liabilities as it relates to non-potable water systems.
Review of Executive Session Transcripts:
a.
December 8, 2011
b.
December 15, 2011
c.
December 22, 2011
i.
Session 1
ii.
Session 2
d.
January 5, 2012
e.
January 23, 2012
f.
January 26, 2012

K.

TOPICS FOR NEXT WATER BOARD MEETING
1. Quarterly Reports (April 2012)
2. Employee of the Year Resolution (April 2012)

L.

TOPICS FOR FUTURE WATER BOARD MEETINGS
1. Amend BAB Project List

M.

UPCOMING EVENTS
1. Poipu Beach Party – March 25, 2012
2. AWWA – Hawaii Section Annual Conference – April 17-20, 2012, Honolulu, Hawaii
3. AWWA – ACE 12 – June 10-14, 2012, Dallas, Texas

N.

NEXT WATER BOARD MEETING
1.
Thursday, April 26, 2012, 10:00 a.m.
Thursday, May 24, 2012, 10:00 a.m.
2.
3.
Thursday, June 28, 2012, 10:00 a.m.
Thursday, July 26, 2012, 10:00 a.m.
4.
5.
Thursday, August 23, 2012, 10:00 a.m.
6.
Thursday, September 27, 2012, 10:00 a.m.

O.

ADJOURNMENT
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7

10:04 - 10:43 a.m.

8

Second Floor, Microbiology Lab Building

9

Kauai County Department of Water
4398 Pua Loke Street

10

Lihue, Kauai, Hawaii 96766

11
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13
14
15
16
17
18

REPORTED BY:

19

TERRI R. HANSON, CSR 482

20

Registered Professional Reporter

21
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RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
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APPEARANCES

1
2

BOARD MEMBERS:

3

Daryl Kaneshiro, Chair

4

Roy Oyama

5

Raymond McCormick

6

Randall Nishimura

7

Clyde Nakaya

8
9

STAFF:
Andrea Suzuki, Deputy County Attorney

10

David Craddick

11

William Eddy

12

Carol Beardmore
(Exited meeting page 3, 10:06 a.m.)

13
14

Marites Yano

15

Gregg Fujikawa

16

Val Reyna

17

Aaron Zambo

18

Sandi Nadatani-Mendez

19

GUESTS:

20

JoAnn Yukimura, County Council Member

21

Jan Tenbruggencate

22
23
24
25
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COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING

1

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

2

Committee of the Whole

3

meeting is now called to order.

It's Thursday,

4

February 23, roughly 10:05 a.m.

Can I have roll call,

5

please.
MS. BEARDMORE:

6
7

Yes, Mr. Chair.

Daryl

Kaneshiro.

8

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

9

MS. BEARDMORE:

Here.

Clyde Nakaya.

10

MR. NAKAYA:

11

MS. BEARDMORE:

Randall Nishimura.

12

MR. NISHIMURA:

Here.

13

MS. BEARDMORE:

Mike Dahilig, Larry Dill,

14

Here.

Raymond McCormick.

15

MR. McCORMICK:

Here.

16

MS. BEARDMORE:

Roy Oyama.

17

MR. OYAMA:

18

MS. BEARDMORE:

19

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

20

Here.
We have quorum.
Thank you for that.

Do I have a motion to accept the agenda?

21

(Carol Beardmore exited meeting.)

22

MR. OYAMA:

23

agenda.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

24
25

Chair, so move to accept the

Second on that, any

second
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1

MR. NISHIMURA:

2

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

3

signify by saying aye.

Second.
All those in favor

Motion carried.

There's two old business still pending in the

4
5

committee of the whole meeting.

6

12-24, emergency operations reserve fund policy, and

7

also Manager's Reporter No. 12-54, debt service reserve

8

fund policy.
At this time I'll open the meeting up to have

9
10

Manager's Report No.

some discussions on those matters.
Mr. Craddick, anything new to add?

11

MR. CRADDICK:

12

Well, we have the benefit of

13

audited reports now, I think, that we didn't have

14

before.

15

says, 2011 audit shows operating expenses at something.

16

And that number there is actually wrong.

17

4.164, and it's actually 5.743 million.

I think the number on the reserve fund there it

18

MR. NISHIMURA:

19

MR. CRADDICK:

It's says

What was that number again?
5.743 million.

I thought I

20

had the right number in there, but I guess I grabbed it

21

before the audit was final.

22

The other number, this goes back to the --

23

that's the operations number.

24

25 percent of that.

25

debt service --

We would be taking

And on the debt service, the actual
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MR. NISHIMURA:

1
2

operations one?

3

MR. CRADDICK:

4

MR. NISHIMURA:

5

Can we stay with that

Okay, okay, okay.
So if the numbers are

correct, we're looking at about 2.98, is that correct?
MR. CRADDICK:

6

No.

Well, the depreciation

7

is higher there.

So what would happen is is the

8

17.66 million total operating expenses is still the

9

same.

10

MR. NISHIMURA:

11

MR. CRADDICK:

Minus 5.7, yeah?
Yeah, we'd be minusing a

12

larger number, so 25 percent of that ends up coming to 3

13

million instead of 3.37 million.

14

MR. NISHIMURA:

15

MR. CRADDICK:

16
17
18
19
20

I get 2.98.
Yeah, yeah.

I'm just kind

of -- I can't do decimals in my head.
MR. NAKAYA:
audited statements.

You mentioned earlier the

Do we have it here?

MR. CRADDICK:

Has it been --

I guess we had it last

month, but I don't have it here.

21

MS. YANO:

I have a copy of it.

22

MR. CRADDICK:

23

MR. NISHIMURA:

24

MS. YANO:

25

MR. NAKAYA:

Oh, you do.

Okay.

The final.

The final.
Are we going to be able to see
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1

a copy later or?

2

MS. YANO:

Yes.

3

MR. CRADDICK:

This -- you know, the exact

4

dollar amount, I mean, this is to me -- I'm trying to

5

give numbers, you know, order of magnitude numbers, not

6

exact numbers.
If the board approves this policy, then in the

7
8

budget we would have to give exact numbers 'cause each

9

year -- well, we're basing this on the previous year's

10

one.

So I guess it is relevant to have the audit

11

information there.

12

want to bring it and then they can look at it there?

That's for sure.

MR. NAKAYA:

13

I mean, this is a procedural

14

thing.

15

able to review that also?

17

could.

18

it?

23
24
25

No, no, you

You had the audit, I think, back in -- when was

MR. NAKAYA:

But that was just a draft,

right?
MR. CRADDICK:

21
22

Yeah, yeah.

December, I think.

19
20

As the governing board, aren't we supposed to be

MR. CRADDICK:

16

I mean, do you

No, the audit was final back

then.
MS. YANO:

It's a final draft, but we

haven't printed in the final.
MR. CRADDICK:

Yeah, the only thing that
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1

was draft was the single audit.

2

MS. YANO:

3

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

4

Yeah.
Can we have copies of

that as part of the board record?
MS. YANO:

5

Yes, in the next board meeting

6

I'll include those copies in the packets.

7

MR. NISHIMURA:

8

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

9

MR. NISHIMURA:

Mr. Chair.
Go ahead.

I'm kind of satisfied with

10

the operations reserve fund.

11

would have for the board is whether the policy itself,

12

whether we would need to include the conditions for

13

disbursement.
MR. CRADDICK:

14
15

The only question that I

That's on the back two pages

there.
MR. NISHIMURA:

16

Yeah.

Is it desirable to

17

have the conditions for disbursement?

18

fairly specific and perhaps that instead of using

19

numbers, they use percentages.

20

say that is if you add up the numbers, they exceed the

21

amount.

22
23
24
25

MR. CRADDICK:

It seems to be

And part of the reason I

When you say exceed the

amount, I'm not sure.
MR. NISHIMURA:

225, 300, 300, 200, and

you're getting fairly close to your balance already.
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Honolulu, Hawaii
(808)524-2090

8

MR. CRADDICK:

1

No, nowheres near 'cause the

2

total is 3 million that's in the reserve, so you're not

3

even a million dollars there.
MR. NISHIMURA:

4

Okay.

I had added it up

5

earlier, and it was more than what it was going to be.

6

And then the five percent, what is that based

7

on, Item 11?
MR. CRADDICK:

8
9

that.

Let's see.

I'm looking at

I'm just saying that if we spend it down, I mean,

10

you're kind of hoping that we don't have another

11

emergency in the next five years where you would bring

12

it back up to the full 25 percent.

13

But basically what's happening there is each

14

year, whatever amount it went down, let's say it went

15

down five percent, well, the next year you'd put the

16

five percent back.

17

down ten percent in one emergency -- one emergency.

18

Then the next year you'd put five percent back in, and

19

then the following year you'd do five percent more.

20

you're not trying to refund the entire account in a

21

single instance.

22
23
24
25

But let's say your revenue fund went

MR. NISHIMURA:

So

If you're doing only five

percent, though, it would take you 20 years, yeah?
MR. CRADDICK:
said that quicker.

Well, okay. I should have

I'm talking about five percent of
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1

the entire revenues less the depreciation.

2

percent is 120 of the 25 percent.
MR. NISHIMURA:

3
4

So the five

Why don't you address the

fund itself rather than the --

5

MR. CRADDICK:

6

MR. NISHIMURA:

Percent?
Well, you can, you know,

7

express this as a percentage, but it should be applied

8

to the -- as applied to the balance of the fund as

9

opposed to the budget.
MR. CRADDICK:

10

Okay.

So that instead of

11

saying five percent, then it would be saying we would

12

replace 20 percent of the fund each year?

13

MR. NISHIMURA:

14

MR. CRADDICK:

Yes.
Instead of five percent.

So

15

if the whole thing was wiped up, it would take you five

16

years to --

17

MR. NISHIMURA:

18

MR. CRADDICK:

19

MR. NISHIMURA:

20

MR. CRADDICK:

Bring it back up.
-- re-bring it back up.
Right.
It's a good point there

21

'cause that was a little -- actually I read that two or

22

three times myself.

23

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Five years.

Okay.

24

Any other comments or issues on the emergency operations

25

reserve fund, Manager's Report 12-24 at this time?
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We'll have Mr. Craddick make those changes.

1
2

We'll move on to 12-54.
MR. NISHIMURA:

3

Do we need to take any

4

action on 12-24 or you're just going to take them as

5

one?
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

6

I believe we could

7

take action noting those changes.

So, you know, we

8

could take action regarding those changes that you

9

recommend if the board chooses to do so at this time.

10

Unless you want to have some time to review the recent

11

material that was just passed out.

12

case, I would say that we defer this to the next

13

meeting, committee meeting, to give the board members an

14

opportunity to review, to go ahead and see what was

15

passed out and then bring this back up at the next

16

committee meeting and hopefully get this out to the full

17

board.

And if that's the

Mr. Craddick.

18

MR. CRADDICK:

19

I guess one problem in

20

deferring this is you're expecting the budget next

21

month, and the reason why this is here is so we can do

22

the budget next month.

23

the budget back.

24

don't know if you've had a chance to look at it there,

25

Clyde.

So if you defer, then it moves

And that number is what it is.

And I

But, I mean, if the board agrees to this, you're
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1

agreeing to a policy, not the exact number.

2

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

3

MR. CRADDICK:

Right.

And the exact number would

4

come up in the budget, at which time you'd have a chance

5

to review the previous year's audit.
MR. NISHIMURA:

6
7

budget with the expectation this will pass, though.
MR. CRADDICK:

8
9

You can still present your

I could, but it would be

better not to have a bunch of things hanging.
MR. NISHIMURA:

10
11

your reserve then.

12

money's got to go someplace.

Is that the other option?

MR. CRADDICK:

13

So you're not going to have
That

Well, right now because

14

we're in a relatively good cash position -- I mean, we

15

have -- we, in fact, have the reserve no matter what.

16

So it would just be nice if there is a policy and, you

17

know, if we're going to revise the budget, then we would

18

revise it to put something in there to put something in.
MR. NISHIMURA:

19
20

the policy.

21

MR. CRADDICK:

22

MR. NISHIMURA:

23

We passed the rates without

Yeah, yeah.
And that's what drives this

whole thing.

24

MR. CRADDICK:

25

MR. NISHIMURA:

Yeah, yeah, yeah.
So I would encourage you to
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1

include that in your budget because that was the basis

2

upon which you increased the rates to the rateholders.

3

MR. CRADDICK:

4

MR. NISHIMURA:

5

MR. CRADDICK:

Irrespective of whether we

Okay.

MR. NISHIMURA:

9

MR. CRADDICK:

That's right.
Okay.

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

10

That's okay with the

board members.

12

MR. NISHIMURA:

13

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

14

MR. NISHIMURA:

15

Just can't spend it

until we get the policy.

8

11

Good point.

have the policy finalized or not.

6
7

Okay.

Mr. Chair.
Yes.

Move to defer Manager's

Report 12-24 to the next committee meeting.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

16

And based on some of

17

the changes that needed to be made that was presented by

18

board members.

Do I have a second on that?

19

MR. McCORMICK:

20

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

21
22

Second.
All those this favor.

Now we'll move on to -- motion carried.
We'll move on to Manager's Report 12-54.
MR. CRADDICK:

23

Okay.

On this one here,

24

let's see.

Are there any changes on this one?

25

there are.

The calculation that I give you for the
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Yes,

13

1

funding example down below, I guess we have -- it's now,

2

Tess, is this number here that you're changing it from

3

3.256 to 4.256?
MS. YANO:

4
5

You're adding one half plus the

monthly transfer.
MR. CRADDICK:

6
7

Okay.

8

on my part there.

So I just added it up wrong.

That one is not a -- it's just a wrong addition

And it is just an example.

9

But what we're

10

doing there is we're basically following what would

11

happen for a debt reserve wherein at all times until the

12

debt is paid off, you have half a year's payment in this

13

fund.

14

put anything in the fund, and you just take the last

15

payment out of this debt reserve fund.

And when you get to the final payment, you don't

So the example here is giving you an example

16
17

assuming all of our debt is paid on the same two dates

18

during the year.

19

this -- it wouldn't match exactly this example, but I'm

20

giving you the worst case amount that would be in the

21

fund here.

22

4.256.

23

said that would total.

24
25

They're not.

And so there wouldn't be

And that number instead of being 3.256, it's

That's in the third line down in the example, it

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Board members, any

questions for Mr. Craddick?
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MR. NAKAYA:

1

Just for clarification, the

2

eight percent, are you going to be using the eight

3

percent figure or the one over 112?

4

difference.

There's like 33 basis points.
MR. CRADDICK:

5

Yeah.

6

entirely up to you.

7

year plus one month.

8

and as high as ten percent over.

That, I think, is

The eight percent allows for half a
I've seen it as small as nothing

MR. NAKAYA:

9

Because there's a

I guess my question is, now if

10

we're using the -- you're saying eight percent in this

11

scenario.
MR. CRADDICK:

12
13

is the bottom line.
MR. NAKAYA:

14
15

MR. CRADDICK:

17

MR. NAKAYA:

18

MR. CRADDICK:

19

MR. NAKAYA:

MR. CRADDICK:

22

MR. NAKAYA:

112 is 8.33 percent.
Yeah, yeah, but -So but it's $21,000

Yeah, yeah, for that.
You know, what are you going

to use, the eight percent or the 112?
MR. CRADDICK:

24
25

Yeah, that's right.

difference.

21

23

But if you look at your

example, eight percent is one over 112.

16

20

Yeah, because eight percent

Just eight percent 'cause
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MR. NAKAYA:

1
2

MR. CRADDICK:

4

MR. NAKAYA:

Yeah, yeah.
I know, Dave, this is just an

example.

6

MR. CRADDICK:

7

MR. NAKAYA:

8

I just wanted for

clarification.

3

5

Okay.

Yeah.
But there's a $21,000

difference there.
MR. CRADDICK:

9

Yeah.

Eight percent is just

10

a whole number, and it's close enough to a month.

11

know, that it's not zero and it's not ten percent,

12

because neither one of those even comes close to a

13

month.

You

And if you wanted, I mean, I would have no

14
15

objection making it 8.3333 percent.

16

-- fiduciarily-wise it's -- I think the intent is there.

17

And if we actually did an exact loan, they would

18

probably say what it has to be in that, and we could

19

increase it slightly or maybe even decrease it at that

20

point.

21

But I think we're

Or even if you, you know, because we're just

22

doing this and there's no pressure on us to do it, I

23

mean, even if you made it zero right now, it shows that

24

you're setting aside the money that you have to pay the

25

debt service on.

So that, I think, is the critical
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1

thing to show what we're doing.
MR. NAKAYA:

2
3

Instead of the specific

number?

4

MR. CRADDICK:

5

MR. NISHIMURA:

6

Yeah, yeah.
That's why I was looking at

the policy as opposed to the report.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

7

Okay.

Members, any

8

further questions or comments on 12-54, debt service

9

reserve?
MR. NISHIMURA:

10

Yeah, the maximum fund

11

balance is 108 percent of the average annual debt

12

service.

MR. CRADDICK:

13
14

But that would remain in

there for -- well, it wouldn't even be in there -MR. NISHIMURA:

15
16

That's one year's worth, yeah?

Why do you need 108 percent

of your annual?
MR. CRADDICK:

17

Because on that day you make

18

half your payment, and it drops to 50 percent at that

19

point.

20

goes out and you pay your debt service.

21

day it reaches 100, it drops to 50 plus eight percent.

22

On the same day you put that money in, the money
So on the same

So the one that you're holding all the time is

23

the 50 percent.

And then just as each month goes you

24

put your money in there.

25

warning system.

And there, that's your early

If there's one month that goes by and
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1

you can't fund that, that should be a signal that we

2

either need to cut expenses, cut jobs or increase rates.

3

And then you've got pretty close to a year in which to

4

do it.

5

months you've already paid into it to do that.
MR. NISHIMURA:

6
7

What is the mechanism to

assuring that up until now?
MR. CRADDICK:

8
9

You've got at least six months plus however many

Just if the staff tells the

board that, Hey, we can't make our payment.

You know,

10

we're not going to be able to make our payments in two

11

or three months or board members watching the financial

12

statements knowing what's coming up.

13

sure nobody keeps that debt service schedule in their

14

head because there's a lot of loans that we have out

15

there.

16

anybody can keep each one of them in their head.

17

won't say that can't do it.

18

do it.

19

payment each month into that fund, that's a very clear

20

signal that pops up right there.

21

make the payment this month.

23
24
25

I mean, I don't even know if an accounting, if
But I

But I know I don't try and

But that's a sure signal.

MR. NISHIMURA:

22

But I'm pretty

If you can't make a

And, oop, couldn't

Why not?
Okay.

Can you explain item

ten?
MR. CRADDICK:

Okay.

What happens there is

if you have this half a year payment that is in the fund
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1

all the time, you're going to be investing and

2

reinvesting that.

3

borrowings, they will tell you in the borrowing in the

4

covenants how long you can keep the money invested.

5

the reason why is they don't like to have the money tied

6

up in a real long-term investment.

7

the interest back and it's not being divided out to the

8

various accounts because there will be more than one

9

account paying into this.

And sometimes, again, when you do

You're not getting

And it's just very good to

10

reallocate that out and spread it out to the various

11

accounts on some recurring basis.
MR. NISHIMURA:

12
13

And

And that's not covered by

one?

14

MR. CRADDICK:

15

MR. NISHIMURA:

16

MR. CRADDICK:

Covered by one, did you say?
Yeah.
No.

Well, that just says

17

that you'll invest it, but it doesn't tell you how long,

18

you know.

MR. NISHIMURA:

19
20

I mean -What's does highly liquid

indicate?
MR. CRADDICK:

21

Well, I guess it could be

22

argued that it's somewhere around three months.

23

you know, some people may feel it's more or less than

24

that.

25

specific on allocating the interest out.

I don't know.

But No. 10 definitely gets
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MR. NISHIMURA:

1
2

Would it be better to

define the liquidity requirement?
MR. CRADDICK:

3

You could, you could.

4

That's another way of doing it.

5

and ten is the specific.

6

it has to be.

8

That's telling you how liquid

MR. NAKAYA:

7

So you're saying that in ten

the maturity has to be less than three years?
MR. CRADDICK:

9

Yes.

10

MR. NAKAYA:

11

MR. NISHIMURA:

12

MR. CRADDICK:

13

That's not liquid.
That's not liquid.
Okay.

Well, there you go.

See.
MR. NISHIMURA:

14
15

But one is the generic,

In my mind that's not

liquid.

16

MR. CRADDICK:

Okay, okay.

17

MR. NISHIMURA:

Because that means you need

18

to see three years ahead and say, I'm going to have a

19

problem.

20

MR. CRADDICK:

Yeah.

So if you want to

21

reduce it down, that's fine.

22

it down, the less interest you get on that money that's

23

sitting there.

24
25

MR. NAKAYA:

Just the more you reduce

I know the thing about earning

interest, but isn't the main purpose of this fund to
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1

debt?

2

MR. CRADDICK:

3

MR. NAKAYA:

4

To save money for debt

servicing and not for revenue generating?
MR. CRADDICK:

5
6

that's true.

7

sit around idly.

8

still that's the fact.

You're right.

No, no.

Yeah, that's true,

Nobody likes their money to

It may not be the purpose, but it's

MR. NISHIMURA:

9
10

Yeah.

What is the longest term

investments we have right now?
MR. CRADDICK:

11

We have some kind of

12

derivative stuff on Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac that could

13

be, you know, if we had any problems with those two

14

funds, we'd be in trouble, like the student loan fund

15

that the state got involved in.

16

MR. NISHIMURA:

17

MR. CRADDICK:

So what is the maturity?
Right now they are still

18

marketable and they are liquid.

But if something were

19

to happen to Freddy Mae -- or whatever it is, the two

20

housing loan accounts there, you know, we would have to

21

sit and wait for people to pay off their house loans in

22

order to get the money.

23

there's a real big market for buying those, but the

24

county is very heavily invested in that Fannie Mae,

25

Freddie Mac.

But right now I don't think
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1

MR. NISHIMURA:

2

MR. CRADDICK:

I don't know.

I can't tell

3

you.

4

know is when I found out, I asked that they get our

5

money out of there.

6
7

I can't tell you.

How liquid is it?

We don't control that.

MR. NISHIMURA:

MS. YANO:

9

MR. NISHIMURA.

We have three years.

MS. YANO:

12

MR. CRADDICK:

13

MS. YANO:

15

Three years.

That's the

longest maturity?

11

14

Can you find that out, the

longest maturity right now?

8

10

All I

Yes.
Okay.

Very good.

Our BAB account is 789 days, if

I remember correctly.
MR. CRADDICK:

And now that you mention

16

that, I think I got this number from Dave Spanski.

17

That's why I put three years in there.

18

MR. NISHIMURA:

The reserve fund is

19

supposed to cover six months.

20

trying this out.

21

the maturity is not more than six months?

22

understand about the interest-bearing issue.

23

Is it -- now, I'm just

Would it be wise to make it so that

MR. CRADDICK:

And I

Well, if you've got that

24

money sitting in triple-A investments, I'm pretty sure

25

the bank would give you a loan on it.

And you're
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1

comparing the likelihood of not getting a loan with the

2

likelihood of you defaulting on the bond because you

3

don't have money to pay it.

4

likelihood of default is relatively low.

5

And I'm thinking that our

And if some very odd catastrophe were to happen

6

and you had that investment in there, you could just go

7

to the bank and say, Hey, can I borrow money on this?

8

And you would get probably 95 percent of it.

9

it's -- I mean, it's solid security, triple-A security.

10
11

Because

It's not like a real estate loan or.
I mean, they might charge you more interest

12

than you were getting on it, but you could get the cash

13

to pay off your debt.

14

MR. NAKAYA:

It's the increment over

15

whatever you're earning.

16

What are we earning on the investments?

17

MS. YANO:

What are we earning right now?

Our biggest investment, which is

18

the BAB, is about 1.28 percent, somewhere like 0.15

19

percent, 0.35.

20

MR. NAKAYA:

21

MS. YANO:

22
23

For the rest.
For the rest.

We have some old

ones, they still have five percent, 2.5.
MR. NISHIMURA:

So that was my only point

24

is, you know, if this is the reserve, that it be more

25

liquid than revenue generating.

Because otherwise we
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1

don't need the reserve.

If the likelihood is that

2

small, then we should reduce the amount of the reserve.

3

I'm looking at it from the rateholders' perspective, you

4

know.
MR. CRADDICK:

5

Well, I don't know.

I'm

6

kind looking at it that way myself.

And, you know, if I

7

was going to have my money sitting idly, I would want it

8

to get as much interest as I could.

9

is available where you can get ahold of the cash when

And as long as that

10

you need it, that it's not in a student loan thing where

11

you have to wait until the loans are paid off before you

12

get your money, if it's not in that kind of an

13

investment, and it's recognized as a liquid -- a fairly

14

liquid asset, lots of people will loan you money on it.

15

And you still have -- are still going to have six months

16

to pay that off.

17

something.

So you've got six months to do

18

So keep in mind, you know, when you realize you

19

have a problem, you've still got six months to deal with

20

it.
MR. NISHIMURA:

21

Which would have a bigger

22

impact?

Having a large reserve fund that doesn't draw

23

-- or that draws a lot of interest versus a smaller fund

24

that doesn't draw as much interest, which will have a

25

bigger impact on water rates?
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MR. CRADDICK:

1
2

much an impact on water rates as it is just -MR. NISHIMURA:

3
4

I don't think this is so

Doesn't it tie up your

money?
MR. CRADDICK:

5

It does tie up the money,

6

but that money you've already committed to pay.

When

7

you took the loan out, you've committed to pay that.

8

it's just how you're going to pay that and how much time

9

do you need -- do you think you need in order to adjust

So

10

if you see a problem in paying?

11

you the better part of a year because that's kind of our

12

history of going through rates is the better part of a

13

year.

14

And I'm trying to give

I mean, if you were willing to, you know, the

15

month that you got the proposal and a rate change and

16

two months later we had the new rates in, which I think

17

you know and I know is impossible here going to the

18

small business and everything like that, back and forth.

19

It's a minimum six months.

20

So then, you know, then suddenly it doesn't

21

look so out of place.

22

setting aside a reserve for about the length of time

23

that it takes you to change your rates, if that's what

24

you want to do.

25

You know, it looks like you're

Obviously you could cut jobs quicker, and in
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1

worst case if you have to cut expenses, I mean, that

2

basically comes down to cutting employees, that would be

3

another way to make ends meet.

4

something to give protection and time for the board so

5

they're not rushed into doing something in the rates and

6

having time to deliberate that without feeling that

7

they're rushed into something with a hammer hanging over

8

their head.
MS. YANO:

9

But this to me is just

Sir, I don't think it will have

10

a major impact on the ratepayers because whether we're

11

setting aside a reserve for our debt service or not, we

12

will still be putting that same amount in our budget.

13

So we're just setting a separate account for the debt

14

service, plus the eight percent that we're putting in

15

every month.
MR. CRADDICK:

16

See, you've got to pay it

17

anyways, I guess is the way I understand what Tess is

18

saying.

19

it.

20

about it.

21

rates in 30 days.

22

provisions, believe it or not, that you could if you had

23

to.

24

want to pull an emergency provision to change rates in

25

order to meet a debt payment?

Is you've got to pay it anyways if you budget

But if we have a problem, we have to do something
We can't do it in 30 days.

You can't change

I mean, there are emergency

But do you want to do that kind of a thing.

Do you

You know, I mean, I would
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1

hope that would never come.

2

reserve fund, it's set up there for some kind of problem

3

that arises.

4

for unexpected events.

And it's not unusual for people to provide

MR. NISHIMURA:

5

But because this is a

Then I go back to the

6

liquidity requirement.

If it's an emergency fund, why

7

are you looking at the revenue generation as the most

8

important thing in this thing?
MR. CRADDICK:

9

I'm not looking at it as the

10

most important.

I just felt that we could go to a bank

11

to get the money if we had to.
MR. NISHIMURA:

12

If you say that the minimum

13

is 58 percent, I can see, you know, allowing up to

14

58 percent of your thing to be in a longer-term

15

investment.

16

be highly liquid.

But, you know, anything above that should

MR. CRADDICK:

17

Well, nothing -- nothing --

18

let's see here.

19

there for 20 years.

20

kind of highly liquid.

21

short term.

22

payment that you put in couldn't exceed six months

23

investment time.

24
25

The 50 percent is going to be sitting
So, I mean, to me three years is
The other stuff is very, very

You know, I mean, obviously the first

MR. NISHIMURA:

But can you make the change

to the policy that reflects that?
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1

MR. CRADDICK:

2

MR. NISHIMURA:

I'm not sure.
Right now the policy allows

3

you to keep it in there for three years for the full

4

amount.

5

MR. CRADDICK:

Okay, okay, okay.

Then, no,

6

you couldn't do the monthly payments that you were

7

putting in for three years.

8

you have to pay that at the end of six months.

9

first fund can be invested for five months, the second

10

one for four months, the third one for two months, the

11

last one or fifth one for one month.

12

the payment goes out on the sixth month.

13

can do that if that needs clarification.

14
15
16

That's for sure.

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Because

And then, boom,
So, yeah, I

Any other comments or

changes to the debt reserve fund policy?
If not, I'm also going to request for deferral

17

on this given the manager some time to have that

18

clarification made.

19

Members, any comments or questions?

20

MR. OYAMA:

21

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

22

MR. OYAMA:

23

So the

Mr. Chair.
Sure.

So move to defer the report,

Manager's Report 12-54.

24

MR. McCORMICK:

Second.

25

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Okay.

We have a
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1

motion on the floor and seconded.

2

questions before I call for the motion or discussion?

3

If not, all those in favor signify by saying

4

Any comments or

aye.

5

Any opposed?

6

None.

7

Let's see.

8

this?

9

adjourned.

Hearing none.

I believe not.

Motion carried.

Do we have other businesses on
We're adjourned.

Committee is

10

(Concluded at approximately 10:43 a.m.,

11

February 23, 2012.)

12

* * * * *

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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1

STATE OF HAWAII

)
)
)

ss.

2

COUNTY OF KAUAI

3

I, TERRI R. HANSON, RPR, CSR 482, do hereby
certify:

4
5
6
7
8
9

That on Thursday, February 23, 2012, at 10:04
a.m. that the foregoing COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING,
County of Kauai, Board of Water Supply, was held;
That the foregoing proceedings were taken down by
me in machine shorthand and were thereafter reduced to
typewritten form under my supervision; that the
foregoing represents to the best of my ability, a true
and correct transcript of the proceedings had in the
foregoing matter.

10
11

I certify that I am not an attorney for any of
the parties hereto, nor in any way concerned with the
cause.

12
13

DATED this 17th day of March, 2012, in Kapaa,
Hawaii.

14
15
16

______________________________
TERRI R. HANSON, CSR 482
Registered Professional Reporter

17
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20
21
22
23
24
25
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REGULAR MEETING

1

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

2

The Regular Board

3

Meeting scheduled for Thursday, February 23rd, 2012, it

4

is now 10:50 a.m. is now called to order.
Can I have the roll call, please.

5
6

MS. SUZUKI:

Board Member Nakaya.

7

MR. NAKAYA:

Here.

8

MS. SUZUKI:

Board Member Nishimura.

9

MR. NISHIMURA:

Here.

10

MS. SUZUKI:

11

MR. McCORMICK:

12

MS. SUZUKI:

13

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

14

MS. SUZUKI:

15

MR. OYAMA:

16

MS. SUZUKI:

17

Member Dahilig.

Board Member McCormick.
Here.

Board Member Kaneshiro.

Board Member Oyama.
Here.
Board Member Dill.

Thank you for that.

19

Do I have a motion to accept the agenda?

20

Members?
MR. OYAMA:

21
22

25

Any motions,

Mr. Chair, so move to accept

the agenda.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

23
24

Board

We have quorum.

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

18

Here.

Do I have a second on

that?
MR. McCORMICK:

Second.
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1
2

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

With that, all those

in favor, signify by saying aye.

3

Any opposed?

4

Hearing none, motion carried.

5

Meeting transcripts, review and approval of the

6

regular board meeting January 26, 2010 (sic).

7

MR. NISHIMURA:

8

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

9

MR. NISHIMURA:

10
11
12

Mr. Chair.
Yes, sir.

On page 24, line 22, the

word five occurs, and it should be fire.
And I believe on page 32, line 13, that should
say accounting system.

13

MR. CRADDICK:

What line was that?

14

MR. NISHIMURA:

15

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

16

MR. NISHIMURA:

17

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

13.
Page 32.

Line 13.
All right.

The board

18

will recognize those changes.

In view of that, do I

19

have a motion to approve the regular board meeting of

20

January 26 with those changes, 2012?

21

MR. NISHIMURA:

Mr. Chair.

22

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

23

MR. NISHIMURA:

Sir.

Move to approve the

24

transcript of the regular board meeting dated

25

January 26, 2012, and that a copy of the oral transcript
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1

also be included with the minutes as modified, and if

2

there are further discrepancies between the written

3

transcript and the audio, that the audio take

4

precedence.

5

MR. OYAMA:

6

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

7

With that, any further

discussion on the motion?
If not, all those in favor signify by saying

8
9

Second.

aye.

10

Opposed?

11

Hearing none, motion carried.

12

Next issue is the correspondence and

13

announcements, a letter from Council Vice-Chair JoAnn

14

Yukimura.

15
16
17

At this time I will turn the chair over to
Vice-Chair Mr. Nakaya.
MR. NAKAYA:

Thank you, Mr Chair.

We're on

18

Item No. E, correspondence/announcements, which is a

19

letter from Council Vice-Chair JoAnn Yukimura.

20

all, I'd like to ask her to step up.

21

COUNCIL VICE-CHAIR YUKIMURA:

First of

Thank you,

22

Vice-Chair Nakaya, Members of the Board:

First of all,

23

I want to apologize to Chair Kaneshiro because the

24

letter that I wrote was misaddressed.

25

he was the chair.

I didn't realize

So sorry for that.
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1

And then also I wanted to thank you all for

2

implementing the 2020 Water Plan.

3

Goodfellow Brothers is in my neighborhood replacing the

4

lines in Kupolo and especially Mr. Yokota (ph) is very

5

happy, but everybody in the neighbor is happy that our

6

water pressure is going to be improved and we won't have

7

so many failures and repairs constantly.

8

very much for that.

9

As I speak,

So thank you

And thank you for the opportunity to speak.

10

I'm speaking as an individual council member.

11

easy to be here on this matter, and I know it's not easy

12

for Mr. Kaneshiro either.

13

that the county should be operating at the highest

14

standards of integrity and service.

15

this issue before you.

16

It's not

But I know we all believe

And so I brought

As my letter states, Chair Kaneshiro came

17

before the council in January of this year for

18

confirmation of his appointment to this honorable body.

19

And I asked him whether he would recuse himself on a

20

matter relating to Grove Farm Company, and he replied

21

affirmatively.

22

voted to confirm him.

23

that he will not vote on Grove Farm matters.

24
25

And I relied on his statement when I
And I would like to be assured

However, I recognize that there is a process
for determining whether there is a conflict of interest.
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1

Section 20.05(D)(2) of the County Charter says that it

2

shall be the duty of the Board of Ethics, quote, To

3

render advisory opinions or interpretations with respect

4

to applications of the code on request.

5

This is a separate duty from their duty to

6

follow up on complaints.

7

the last ethics board meeting a fellow council member

8

requested and received such an advisory opinion.

9

And as a matter of fact, at

So I would like to suggest that it would be in

10

the interest of the public that Mr. Kaneshiro seek an

11

advisory opinion.

12

that he obtain an opinion because if he participants in

13

any discussion leading to decision making or in the

14

decision making itself and is later found to be in

15

conflict of interest, it's possible that that vote which

16

your body would make might be rendered null and void.

17

So it would just be good due diligence to have that

18

cleared one way or the other.

19
20

I'm open to any questions.

23

But that's all I

have to say.
MR. NAKAYA:

21
22

And it's also important to this body

Thank you very much.

Board Members, any questions for Mrs. Yukimura?
Seeing none.

Any further discussion?

24

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

25

MR. NAKAYA:

Can I, Mr. Chair?

Sure.
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CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

1

Thank you.

I'm referring to the Board of Water Supply

2
3

Handbook, and one of the powers and duties of the board,

4

as you know, is to manage and control operations of the

5

water works of the county and all property thereof for

6

the purpose of supplying water to the public.

7

So I want you to know my fiduciary duties as

8

stated within Article 17, Section 17.03 on the powers

9

and duties under the Department of Water as a board

10
11
12

member.
I also want to refer to County Charter Article
5, Code of Ethics, Section 20.04 on disclosure.

13

Disclosure is clear that any elected official,

14

appointed officer, employee or any member of a board or

15

commission who possesses or acquires such interest that

16

might reasonably tend to create a conflict with his

17

duties or authority or who is an owner, officer,

18

executive director or director of an organization or

19

whose member of his immediate family, which includes

20

parents, siblings, spouse or children, is an owner,

21

officer, executive director or director of an

22

organization in any matter pending before him shall make

23

full disclosure of the conflict of interest and shall

24

not participate in said matter.

25

So it is clear under the disclosure part of
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1

Article 10 -- 20, Section 20.04 on the disclosures.
I also want to refer you to H.R.S., Chapter

2
3

84-14, conflict of interest.

We're talking about a

4

state statute now.

5

Conflict of interest, no employee shall take any

6

official action directly affecting the business or other

7

undertaking in which he has a substantial financial

8

interest.

9

interest or private undertaking which he is engaged as a

State statutes states this:

Remember -- keep this in mind.

Financial

10

legal counsel, advisor, consultant, representation and

11

other agency capacity.

12

If you go back to the definition of financial

13

interest, as I stated, take the word financial interest,

14

H.R.S. specifically states that financial interest means

15

an interest held by an individual, the individual's

16

spouse or dependent children; dependent children; in

17

which he has an ownership interest in a business, a

18

creditor interest in an insolvent business, an

19

employment or prospective employment for which

20

negotiations have begun and ownership interest in real

21

property, personal property, a loan or other debtor

22

interests.

23

Then we move on and look at the Kauai County

24

Code, under the Internal County Regulations, Article 1,

25

Section 3.1.2, specifically states this also.
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1

interest means an interest held by an individual, his

2

spouse or his minor children.
It also goes to say, A divorce or separation

3
4

between spouses shall not terminate any relationship

5

which is an ownership in the business, a creditor

6

interest in an insolvent business, an employment or

7

prospective employment for which negotiations have begun

8

and ownership interest in real or personal property, and

9

so forth.

10

So, you know, for me, I'm sitting here thinking

11

that if this same issue is going to be applied to me as

12

Council Member has so eloquently put out the question to

13

me, if I would recuse myself, thinking that I would

14

recuse myself based on the Kauai County Code, Article 10

15

-- 20, H.R.S. 84-14.

16

And, you know, you're talking to a layman

17

person who's sitting here volunteering for a position

18

like this for a board member compared to a so-called

19

attorney who I said was asking a question like this.

20

me I feel, you know, if this is what Council Member

21

Yukimura wants me to abide by which is above the County

22

Code Section 20, which is above H.R.S. 84-14, so be it.

23

But let me tell you something, Council Member

24

Yukimura, I want to be sure, I want to be sure, that

25

every single elected official, every single board
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1

member, every single commission that serves on a

2

commission, and every single employee now of the County

3

of Kauai also abide by your recommendations.
If not, you know, I totally feel that Council

4
5

Member Yukimura is discriminating against me and my

6

family.
COUNCIL VICE-CHAIR YUKIMURA:

7
8

Mr. Chairman,

may I respond?
MR. NAKAYA:

9

Go ahead.

COUNCIL VICE-CHAIR YUKIMURA:

10

I -- you

11

know, the chair of the board has cited many laws, and

12

it's not up to any of us to apply it to ourselves.

13

That's why we have an ethics commission that is -- whose

14

specific duty is to render advisory opinions or

15

interpretations with respect to the application of the

16

code on request.
And so I think that is the proper forum to

17
18

apply it.

19

don't listen to me.

20

least get an opinion from the board that is under our

21

charter designated to render opinions with respect to

22

ethical -- possible ethical conflict.

23

I could be wrong.

And that's why I'm saying

I'm not the one to decide.

MR. NAKAYA:

But at

So basically your letter here,

24

you're not asking to have Daryl recuse himself.

25

just saying, go through the process to see if there's a
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1

conflict?

2

COUNCIL VICE-CHAIR YUKUMURA:

3

MR. NAKAYA:

4

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Right.

Board Members?
Then I believe the

5

same situation should be applied to all members of the

6

board, all members that are elected, all members that

7

serves on commission and all employees of the county

8

government.

9

20 of the code of ethics, I specifically stated H.R.S.

Because I specifically stated the Article

10

84-14.

11

to every single one of them.

12
13
14

And therefore, a request of such should go out

If not, I would say I'm fairly untreated by
Council Member Yukimura.
COUNCIL VICE-CHAIR YUKIMURA:

Actually

15

everyone does have to make disclosure statements.

16

think all of you had to file them when you became a

17

member of the board.

18

I

And the other way that the framework of the

19

charter works is either there's a complaint or else a

20

person like this council member who went forward went on

21

his own volition to ask.

22

Kaneshiro can make a complaint against any and everybody

23

who he thinks is in conflict of interest, then that

24

should trigger the advisory -- excuse me -- the ethics

25

commission investigation.

So, I mean, and if Mr.

So those are the ways under
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1
2

the charter.
Now, I've raised the question.

3

a part of his confirmation hearing.

4

no reservation.

5

I raised it as

He answered me with

I relied on that.

But I'm saying even though I did that, let's go

6

through the regular process provided by the charter to

7

make a determination and don't stand on my determination

8

or his determination.

9

responsible under the charter to make that

10

But let the body that's

determination.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

11

I also want to make it

12

clear for the record that when the question was posed to

13

me, I was in reference to -- my response was based on

14

Code of Ethics, Article 10 -- 20 -- Article 20, and

15

again, H.R.S. 84-14.

16

the floor at that time, I'm sorry I didn't.

17

layman, assuming that Council Member JoAnn Yukimura

18

knows the Code of Ethics, Chapter 20 and also knows

19

H.R.S. 84-14, I assumed this is what I was applying to.

20

So if I needed to clarify that on

So if I'm wrong, fine.

But as a

But at the same time,

21

you know, I think all the same questions should be asked

22

by Council Member Yukimura to every single commission or

23

board member.

24

COUNCIL VICE-CHAIR YUKIMURA:

25

MR. NAKAYA:

Thank you.

Your letter, when you said
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1

your intent was based on what Daryl said or was it based

2

on ordinance he just mentioned or just your personal

3

feel- -- I mean, what was this letter based on?
COUNCIL VICE-CHAIR YUKUMURA:

4
5

on his answer.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

6
7

Response.

That's

correct.
COUNCIL VICE-CHAIR YUKUMURA:

8
9

It was based

To me that he

would recuse himself.

10

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

That's correct.

11

COUNCIL VICE-CHAIR YUKIMURA:

And so I just

12

wanted to make sure that that was happening, or if

13

there's -- if my understanding of the conflict of

14

interest law was not accurate, that we would get an

15

opinion from the body that is responsible under the

16

charter.

17

MR. NAKAYA:

Mr. Oyama.

18

MR. OYAMA:

19

COUNCIL VICE-CHAIR YUKUMURA:

20

MR. NAKAYA:

Question.
Yes.

Would it be wise that during

21

his confirmation before that that if you had that

22

concern be cleared through the commission of ethics?

23

COUNCIL VICE-CHAIR YUKUMURA:

Well, I asked

24

him -- there have been council members who have not

25

sought an opinion and they have said, I will recuse
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1

myself because I feel I'm in conflict.

2

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

3

COUNCIL VICE-CHAIR YUKUMURA:

4

That's correct.
And so I just

asked him whether he would.
MR. OYAMA:

5

Yeah, I'm asking, wouldn't it

6

be possible that when you know the confirmation is

7

coming up and you have an idea of some -- any areas of

8

grayness, couldn't you bring it up at the -COUNCIL VICE-CHAIR YUKUMURA:

9

Well, it

10

wasn't necessary because he already was -- said he was

11

willing to recuse himself.

12

MR. OYAMA:

Yeah, I understand that.

13

COUNCIL VICE-CHAIR YUKIMURA:

There appears

14

to be some resistance now, and that's why I'm saying

15

let's clear it up and go to the board.
MR. OYAMA:

16

But in my mind if I know I'd be

17

facing it, I personally would go to the ethics

18

commission to clear it before they approve it.
COUNCIL VICE-CHAIR YUKUMURA:

19
20
21

Yes, I know

you would.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Okay.

And, you know,

22

I don't have any problem with that either.

But what I'm

23

saying is that, you know, you're putting me above

24

everyone else to do exactly this because, you know, for

25

one thing my son is not a minor or a dependent child.
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1

For one thing he's neither an officer, director or

2

stockholder of the company.

3

he's not even a dependent of mine.

And number two, you know,

So I'm just -- you know, I think the question

4
5

was posed unfairly when you posed the question, and I

6

had relied on you as being a council member for over

7

14 years, as being a previous mayor and has been an

8

attorney that you would ask me a question that would

9

relate to the, you know, Code of Ethics, Article 20 and

10

H.R.S. 84-14.
Then if not, then I feel you're treating me

11
12

unfairly because that question should be asked of every

13

single board member that comes before you.

14

you feel.

That's how

That's my resistance.

15

COUNCIL VICE-CHAIR YUKIMURA:

16

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

I understand.

I feel that you've

17

been treating me unfairly and that you're discriminating

18

against me and my family.

19

COUNCIL VICE-CHAIR YUKIMURA:

20

prove that by going to the advisory board -- I mean, to

21

the ethics commission and having them render an opinion

22

that may very well support you, your position.

23

clear yourself.

24
25

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

And you can

You can

Then I could come

after you for discrimination suit, if that's the case.
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COUNCIL VICE-CHAIR YUKIMURA:

1
2

feel that way.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

3
4

MR. NAKAYA:

6

MR. OYAMA:

Thank you.
Mr. Chair, we have a former

deputy here.
MR. NAKAYA:

8
9

I mean, think about

it.

5

7

I'm sorry you

There's someone in the public

want to speak.

10

(Council Vice-Chair JoAnn Yukimura exited

11

meeting.)

12

MR. OYAMA:

13

MR. NAKAYA:

Can you step up and state your

MR. KALUNA:

I would like to remind you

14
15

And I think that in good cause.

name.

16

young people that are on the board, you were created and

17

you are not an accountant.

18

Remember that.

19
20
21
22

MR. NAKAYA:

Excuse me, sir.

Could you

state your name for the record.
MR. KALUNA:

I wanted to stand up because

I'm looking down at you.

23

MR. OYAMA:

24

MR. KALUNA:

25

They used to run you.

Can you identify yourself?
My name is Jeremiah Makaho

Kaluna, born in South Kailua (ph) Honolulu, went to
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1

mainland to learn the haole way, came back to Kauai as

2

your county engineer before as a board member, as a --

3

working also as a board member.

4

department.

Going to the water

I love the water department.

I really wanted to say that in the old days the

5
6

county ran this.

7

problems, the legislature decided to separate you from

8

them.

9

say, yes, sir.

10

But they were creating so many

So you're independent.

You don't even have to

You can say, Well, we're concerned, you

know, courtesy.
But I know there's a lot of the questions

11
12

asked, questioning you.

The law says you are separate.

13

You don't have to say anything.

All right.

14

And that's the main thing I wanted to come up

15

and say, that you are independent as well, and I think

16

you know that.

17

them.

I know you want to be nice and talk with

But see, they separated you because of this

18
19

thing.

20

doing it, they weren't separating the two, the county

21

and the water department, creating the water department.

22

You're independent.

That's all I wanted to remind you.

23

You're independent.

And I like what you're doing.

And as you know, I'm not a young guy.

24
25

They didn't want them to -- the way they were

old guy.

I'm an

I've been here a long time on the island.
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1

that's all I wanted to say.

2

saying, aaaaahhh.

3

I know you are, and I believe all of you have read your

4

responsibilities, you know, what you stand for.

5

always keep in mind, because I do, when the legislature

6

separated you from the county, there was a good reason.

You do what you think is right.

And

But

Anyway, I just wanted to say Aloha, good

7
8

I'm listening and I'm

morning.
MR. NAKAYA:

9

Thank you, Mr. Kaluna.

10

Are there any questions, Board Members?

11

Seeing none -MR. OYAMA:

12

I would just like to thank him.

13

He's been a good supporter of the board.

14

him around when he's around to give his opinion.

15

you.
MR. KALUNA:

16

So good to see

He's biased, though.

Thank

I do

17

want to say good morning, and I realize you go through

18

this all the time, and I come because every once in a

19

while something will happen that I remember when I was

20

younger, and even that guy was younger, you know.
As we all know, he worked very close with the

21
22

former mayor, and I met him through the mayor because he

23

was working all the time.

24

bit.

25

is separate than the county.

But so he's biased a little

But I believe when he came here he knows that it
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This is what I mean.

1

I'm listening to him this

2

morning, and saying, Wow, he is a tiger.

3

the water department.

He belongs in

4

Anyway, maybe he's getting older, that's why.

5

I just wanted to say good morning and say

6

aloha.

7

MR. NAKAYA:

Thank you very much.

8

MR. KALUNA:

Thank you.

9
10

Of course, you got

a guy who's been good, but I like him because he's
quiet.

11

MR. NAKAYA:

Board Members, any discussion?

12

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

If I may, let me just

13

state this for the record then.

14

circumstances, I will hope that the board would receive

15

this, and I will go ahead and forward something to the

16

Board of Ethics just to make it easier on everybody and

17

less stressful on everybody.
MR. NAKAYA:

18
19

Being under the

Thank you, Mr. Kaneshiro.

Can

I have a motion to receive correspondence for -CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

20

I will personally on

21

my side.

Nothing to do as a board member.

22

send something to have the Board of Ethics render an

23

opinion

24

MR. NAKAYA:

25

MR. OYAMA:

On my side,

Mr. Nishimura.
I move a receive the letter
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1

from Council Member Yukimura.
MR. NISHIMURA:

2

As far as receiving this, I

3

got no problem with that.

I think a lot of the things

4

that Daryl has pointed out, you know, from a legal

5

standpoint are true.

6

Yukimura does, indeed, feel that strongly, that she

7

should -- the proper venue would have been to have taken

8

this directly to ethics as opposed to bringing it to us.

9

And she has had ample time to do that.

I think that if Councilperson

So, you know, and I applaud the chair's

10
11

willingness to submit to ethics.

12

extent, I would have preferred if it went directly to

13

them rather than dragging the board through all of this.

14

That's all.

And I will second Roy's motion.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

15

But, you know, to an

I thank you for that,

16

Mr. Randy.

Had I heard your comments, I could have

17

probably made a different decision.

18

MR. NISHIMURA:

19

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Joking aside.

First in, first out.
I should have waited

20

for Council Member Yukimura to send this before the

21

Board of Ethics.

22

from my side, and we can move on to water business.
MR. OYAMA:

23
24
25

But let's put it aside.

Right.

I'll do it

I thank you, Mr. Chair,

for that.
MR. NAKAYA:

Thank you.

So that's it for
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1

Item No. E1.

Oh, excuse me.

Okay.

Let's take a vote

2

on the motion to receive correspondence from Council

3

Vice-Chair JoAnn Yukimura.

Roll call.

4

MS. SUZUKI:

You want to --

5

MR. NAKAYA:

Okay.

All in favor say aye.

6

Nay.

7

Okay.

8

Now, I would like to turn over the chairmanship

9

Any nays?
Hearing none, motion is carried.

back to Mr. Kaneshiro.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

10
11

Mr. Nakaya.

12

meeting.

Thank you for that,

You did a marvelous job during this

Now, back it to our board committee reports.

13
14

Report of the Committee of the Whole of the Kauai County

15

Board of Water Supply and the Manager's Report No.

16

12-24, Manager's Report 12-54.

17

both of them, and the recommendation from the committee

18

was that we'll move this on to the next committee

19

meeting scheduled for March, at which time we will be

20

hopefully finalizing the policies, both policies in the

21

committee and making some changes that were recommended

22

by the committee members and move this on to the full

23

board.

24
25

I would like to take

That's all I have at this time.

Do we have to

make a motion on any of these committee reports?
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MR. CRADDICK:

1
2

I don't think there's

any report --

3

(Many people speaking at one time.)

4

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Okay.

5

would like to move on to old business.

6

to take a five-minute recess.

7

MR. OYAMA:

8

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

9
10
11

So with that, I
And I would like

So it be.
Some of my chair guys

or possibly chair guys on some committees are not here.
Anyway, we're going do deal with it in five minutes.
(A break was had.)
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

12

Board meeting is now

13

called back to order.

14

committee members, as stated, those who are not here

15

usually get to be appointed chair.

16

announcement that under the rules committee, we'll have

17

chair Mike Dahilig.

18

member we'll have Ray McCormick and Randy Nishimura, who

19

will be serving on that committee, on the rules

20

committee.

21

Under the listing of officers and

So I want to make an

Also serving on that committee as a

Under finance committee, again because Larry

22

Dill is not here, chair of finance.

23

Clyde Nakaya on that committee along with Roy Oyama on

24

that committee, on the finance.

25

And we will have

So at this time, I'll open it up for any
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1

discussion if members have some discussion on this.

2

guess the chairman can discuss anything they're not

3

here.

4

some discussion on their committee.

6

So the rest of us have the opportunity to have

MR. NISHIMURA:

5

I think you've appointed

fine, chairperson.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

7

Thank you for that.

8

Thank you for that recognition.

9

believe we need a motion on that, right?
MS. SUZUKI:

10
11

I think the board has to

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

MR. NISHIMURA:

15

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

16

MR. NISHIMURA:

Yes, go ahead.

Move to approve the

committee assignments designated by the chair.
MR. McCORMICK:

19

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Second.
Okay.

Any further

discussion on that?
If not, all those in favor signify by saying

21
22

So, Board

Mr. Chair.

18

20

Okay.

Members, with that --

14

17

With that, I don't

confirm your appointments.

12
13

I

aye.

23

Any nays?

24

Hearing none.

25

Manager's Report 12-24, Manager's Report 12-54,

Motion is carried.
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1

debt service reserve fund policies.

2

believe, are deferred, right?

3

MR. CRADDICK:

4

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Both of them, I

Yes.
So we'll probably have

5

some action taken on the next board meeting on both

6

reports, 12-24, 12-54.

7

that, do we?

8

being that it was deferred in committee?

9

do that.

So we don't need any motion on

Do we need to make a motion to defer these

Motion to defer on both item.

10

MR. NAKAYA:

11

MR. OYAMA:

12

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

So move.
Second.
Any discussion?

If not, all those in favor signify by saying

13
14

Why don't we

aye.

15

Any opposed?

16

Hearing none, Manager's Reports 12-24 and 12-54

17
18
19
20
21

are deferred.
Under the new business, Manager's Report No.
12-58, right of entry agreement from KMN, LLC.
With that, Mr. Craddick.
MR. CRADDICK:

Okay.

This is a right of

22

entry from KMN, LLC subdivision, and the right of entry

23

agreement is attached to it there.

24

MR. NISHIMURA:

Mr. Chair.

25

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Yes.
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MR. NISHIMURA:

1
2

Move to approve Manager's

Report 12-58.

3

MR. OYAMA:

Second.

4

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

5

approve and a second.

6

discussion on that matter?

I have a motion to

Any questions?

7

If not, all those in favor.

8

Any opposed?

9

Hearing none, motion carried.
Manager's Report No. 12-59, emergency phone

10
11

Any further

replacement.

Mr. Craddick.
MR. CRADDICK:

12

Okay.

You know, it says,

13

Emergency phone replacement, but it's more like a kind

14

of a staff inconvenience type of emergency more than a

15

procurement emergency.

16

call in, you can leave messages.

17

interoffice.

18

line to line.

19

and things like that.

20

that we're having to deal with here because of the phone

21

system.

22

But if any of you have tried to
We can't do

You know, we have to call each other from
We can't do a -- work the intercom system
So quite a few inconveniences

And we did have $10,000 budgeted, but prior to

23

this we usually had 100,000 budgeted.

And so we have it

24

under pretty good authority that it wouldn't cost more

25

than this to go with the same system that county has.
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1

So I'm asking you for that much to revise the budget to

2

allow an additional 100,000 in the budget.
MR. NAKAYA:

3
4

about?
MR. CRADDICK:

5
6

How many phones are we talking

We have about, I believe,

it's 55 phones.

7

MS. NADATANI-MENDEZ: 60.

8

MR. CRADDICK:

9

MS. NADATANI-MENDEZ:

How much?

MR. CRADDICK:

10

60.

60, yeah, yeah, we're going

11

for 60 because there's a lot of people that don't have

12

phones.
MS. NADATANI-MENDEZ:

13
14

vacant positions.

15

MR. CRADDICK:

16

MR. NAKAYA:

17

Yeah.
And what kind of system is it?

Voice over or just land -MS. NADATANI-MENDEZ:

18
19

MR. NAKAYA:

21

MS. NADATANI-MENDEZ:

23
24
25

Looking at voice

over.

20

22

There's a lot of

Will this be enough?
Yeah.

You can get

more if you'd like.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:
for the manager?

Any other questions

Mr. Oyama.

MR. OYAMA:

Yeah.

Just a question on, you
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1

know, what kind of recommendation or your phone

2

companies that you are looking at that will be

3

servicing?
MR. CRADDICK:

4

There's a statewide

5

procurement with Hawaiian Telephone.

6

without doing any bid stuff like that, but I believe we

7

are looking at some other ones just so that we know

8

we're not totally out there if things have changed.

9

Prices have come down on these phone systems.

10

We could do that

So we're

looking at a couple of others.
MR. OYAMA:

11

Okay.

I mean, I would caution

12

that they can provide the service, because I know a lot

13

of people moved around and not have the service.
MR. CRADDICK:

14

Well, the other ones that

15

we're looking at are still basically using the same

16

telephone lines we have.
MR. OYAMA:

17
18

So ...
Okay.

question.

19

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

20

MR. OYAMA:

21

approve.

Any --

Mr. Chair, I so move to

This is a very urgent business matter.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

22
23

That's the only

Do we have a second on

that?

24

MR. McCORMICK:

Second.

25

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Moved and seconded.
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1

Any further discussion on this item?

2

If not, all those in favor signify by saying

3

aye.

4

Any opposed?

5

Hearing none, motion carried.

6

Next item on new business is Manager's Report

7

No. 12-59.

8

it happens.
MR. OYAMA:

9
10
11

Oh, sorry, I left my glasses off.

I see how

Put the double glass on.

It's

better.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Restore encumbered

12

contracts from the 2010-2011 budget for one vehicle and

13

one compact excavator/trailer combination.

14

With that, Mr. Craddick.

15

MR. CRADDICK:

Okay.

These two items

16

actually bid in the last fiscal year, and the equipment

17

was not delivered at that time.

18

delivery this year.

19

in the budget last year.

20

put into the budget here.

21

those two things.

But we didn't pick up these items
So we're asking that they be
It's a total $120,696 for

We do have them already, but ...

22

MR. OYAMA:

23

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

24

MR. OYAMA:

25

We actually took

Question.
Go ahead, Mr. Roy.

I noticed that you have listed

here as Cutter Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Pearl City.
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1

you checked with the island also?
MR. CRADDICK:

2
3

MR. REYNA:

MR. CRADDICK:

You weren't here either,

Val, so -MR. OYAMA:

8
9

That's the very first question

here?

6
7

Bill is not

here.

4
5

Let's see.

I mean, it's listed here as

Cutter Dodge of Pearl City.

10

MR. CRADDICK:

11

MR. OYAMA:

Yeah.

12

MR. REYNA:

This truck has been delivered

13

Pearl city versus Kauai.

and it's already in use.
MR. CRADDICK:

14

No, no.

I think the

15

question is why did we get it from Pearl City versus

16

Kauai?

Is that the question?

17

MR. OYAMA:

18

MR. CRADDICK:

19

Yeah.
And I think when the bid

goes out, anybody statewide can bid.
MR. OYAMA:

Oh, I see.

22

MR. REYNA:

They are the lowest bid.

23

MR. OYAMA:

Just looking at fairness to our

20
21

And this is the

lowest bid?

24

own island people.

25

question be --

But, yeah, I concur.

Should the
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MR. McCORMICK:

1

Mr. Chair, I move to

2

approve Manager's Report 12-60, restore encumbered

3

contracts.

4

MR. OYAMA:

5

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

6

I second.
We have a motion to

approve that.

7

Any further discussions?

8

If not, all those in favor.

9

Any opposed?

10

Hearing none, motion carried.

11

Manager's Report No. 12-61, Job 99-08, first

12
13

contract amendment with Fukunaga and Associates.
Mr. Craddick.
MR. CRADDICK:

14

Okay.

This one if you read

15

in the recommendation, it says, 38,000.

16

on amendment one it says only 8,000.

17

correct number.

18

the eight.

19

it is correct.

20
21
22
23
24
25

But down below

8,000 is the

So you can drop that three in front of

It's an $8,000 request, and then the rest of

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Okay.

Any questions

for the manager by board members on 12-61?
If not, do I have a motion on the floor?
MR. OYAMA:

Mr. Chair, move to approve

Manager's Report 12-61.
MR. McCORMICK:

Second.
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CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

1
2

And seconded by Mr.

McCormick.

3

Any further discussion on the item?

4

If not, all those in favor --

5

MS. YANO:

Sir.

6

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

7

MS. YANO:

Go ahead.

I just want to bring to your

8

attention that the original request was for 38,000, so

9

my running balance for the CIP reserve balance has

10

changed from 38,000.

11

record, the running balance after Manager's Report

12

12-59, 12-60, and 12-61, it comes out to be 2,549,116

13

for that CIP reserve.
MR. CRADDICK:

14
15

They requested 15,260.

So that 27 number is

incorrect?
MS. YANO:

16
17

other two requests.

18

2.549

This was used first before the

So, yeah.

It would come down to

19

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

20

MS. YANO:

21

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

22

So for the

2,511,853.

2,549,116.
Okay.

We'll recognize

that and make the changes to that.

23

Any questions on the changes?

24

If not, I believe we have a motion on the floor

25

for approval of the funding of 12-61.
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With that, all those in favor signify by saying

1
2

aye.

3

Any opposed?

4

Hearing none, motion carried.

5

Manager's Report No. 12-62, second amendment

6

for M-02 100,000-gallon tank and connecting pipeline.
Okay.

7

MR. CRADDICK:

8
9
10

Okay.

This is an amendment

to the job, the NPDS permit and slightly larger tank
than we were originally planning.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

11
12

Mr. Manager.

Any questions for

manager or staff on this?

13

MR. McCORMICK:

Mr. Chair, move to approve

14

Manager's Report No. 12-62 for Job 02-11.

15

MR. OYAMA:

16

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

17

Second.
We have a motion on

the floor to approve 12-62.

18

Any further discussion on the item?

19

If not, all those approve signify by saying

20

aye.

21

Any opposed?

22

Hearing none, Manager's Report No. 12-62 is

23

approved.

24

Manager's Report 12-63, rewards program.

25

Mr. Craddick.
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1

MR. CRADDICK:

Okay.

On this one here what

2

we did in the past when we got the employee of the year

3

and quarterly -- employees of the quarter, but what we

4

would do is we would let them go to conventions.

5

And in looking at what the board was doing with

6

its own travel policy and having some kind of report and

7

hopefully getting some kind of good information out of

8

it coming back to the water department, I changed our

9

standard operating procedure on the staff side.

10

And so now people are going to have to do the

11

same thing, identify something at the conference that's

12

beneficial to the water department.

13

they have to come back and give some kind of

14

presentation to the water department.

15

When the people go,

And when I did that, then, you know, people

16

were starting to think that if they got employee of the

17

year, employee of the quarter, it was going to be looked

18

at maybe more as a punishment than a reward.

19

So I was talking to some of the people, not the

20

whole rewards committee, but some of them, and made this

21

recommendation to our rewards committee.

22

seemed to go along with it subject to the funding.

And they

23

But what we would do now is just give a

24

monetary amount for employees of the quarter and

25

employee of the year, and we still end up costing us
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Honolulu, Hawaii
(808)524-2090

35

1

about half of what it would have cost before.

2

know, it's not to say that some of these people might

3

still be able to go to conference anyways, but we know

4

if they go to the conference, we're going to be getting

5

something back, some kind of training from them to the

6

rest of the employees for that expense.

7

here, I think, we'll actually get a larger participation

8

in the rewards program because of this.

9

a fair -- pretty good acceptance on the employees' part

10

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

It seemed to be

So what I'm hearing is

that you'll give the employee of the year an option?

13

MR. CRADDICK:

14

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

15

And this one

of doing this.

11
12

And, you

No, it's not an option.
Whether he goes to the

conference and come back and make a report.
MR. CRADDICK:

16

No, it wouldn't be an

17

option.

This would just be the reward.

18

person works, if the supervisor sees fit if there is

19

something beneficial for them and the department, and we

20

can get something back, they're willing to give a

21

presentation, then the other would be offering.

22

that's has nothing to do -CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

23
24
25

If where the

But

Right, but that's

something -MR. CRADDICK:

It has nothing to do with
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1

this rewards program.

2

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

3

MR. NAKAYA:

4

MR. CRADDICK:

6

MR. NAKAYA:

7

MR. CRADDICK:
committee.

Well, it's a staff

Well, is it rewards committee, Faith?
Excuse me.
You're going to have to fill

in here since our -MS. SHIRAMIZU:

12

I'm sorry.

We were having

a separate discussion.
MR. CRADDICK:

14
15

And what was the feedback?

MR. CRADDICK:

10

13

Yes.

MS. SHIRAMIZU:

9

11

You mentioned you presented

this to the rewards committee.

5

8

Okay.

I know.

I know.

That's why

I called on you.

16

MS. SHIRAMIZU:

17

MR. NAKAYA:

What was the question?

Well, the question, this was

18

presented to the committee, and what was the feedback

19

from the committee?
MS. SHIRAMIZU:

20

You know, Sandy might be

21

able to answer that because I'm no longer on that

22

committee.

23

MS. NADATANI-MENDEZ:

We were okay with it.

24

It's just the fact that when you came back and you had

25

to report, the whole purpose of going to the conference
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1

was to get training, and you would come back and train

2

the people in that group what you learned.

3

if I went to an IT conference, I wouldn't come back and

4

train everybody in IT because they're not in IT, the

5

only thing is fiscal -MR. CRADDICK:

6
7

the SOP.

8

the --

So like say

Well, you're talking about

You're not talking about the rewards.

MS. NADATANI-MENDEZ:

9

I think

Yeah, we're okay with

10

the fact that this is okay as long as when you come

11

back, you're not training everybody in the department.
MR. CRADDICK:

12
13

on this.

No, there is no coming back

This is just cash.
MS. NADATANI-MENDEZ:

14

Cash.

Yeah, it was

15

just the funding part of it.

16

that it was okay to do something like this because we

17

are a county.

18
19

MR. NAKAYA:

That we had to make sure

So they're okay with instead

of the reward being the travel --

20

MS. NADATANI-MENDEZ:

21

MR. NAKAYA:

22

Yes.

In turn getting the cash, they

were okay with it?

23

MS. NADATANI-MENDEZ:

24

MR. NAKAYA:

25

MR. CRADDICK:

Yeah.

Okay.
Might have to pay a little
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1

tax on the cash, but ...

2

MR. NAKAYA:

3

MR. McCORMICK:

4

MR. NAKAYA:

5

Yeah, that's the thing, right?
Yeah, they do.

Payroll taxes, yeah.

aware of that, right?

6

MR. CRADDICK:

7

MS. NADATANI-MENDEZ:

8

That was never brought up.

9

the whole cash part.
MR. NAKAYA:

10

Yeah.
I don't think so.

I can tell you that.

You're going to have to pay some taxes on that

12

individually, so I hope they're aware of that.
MS. NADATANI-MENDEZ:

13

Is the FICA part of

it.
MR. NISHIMURA:

15
16

It was

Yeah, it's like a bonus.

11

14

They're

Yeah, I guess, my concern

is --

17

MR. NAKAYA:

Collective bargaining.

18

MR. NISHIMURA:

Collective bargaining, and

19

more so, I believe, either DAGS or Board of Water Supply

20

attempted to do this and give bonuses to their -- I

21

don't know if it was managers or what, but they actually

22

ended up having to rescind that because it was viewed as

23

illegal.

24

reward program, but it may have to be given in a

25

nonmonetary manner.

Now, it's not to discourage some kind of
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MR. CRADDICK:

1

Well, actually this came

2

from Marc Guyot.

Doing this, so he knew what we were

3

looking at doing, and I don't know if you're ready to

4

answer something like that, Andrea.
MS. SUZUKI:

5

Any HR personnel stuff I

6

forward it to Deputy County Attorney Marc Guyot since

7

he's our specialist in that area.

8

to him.

9

him, I can.

So this was forwarded

If you would like me to make another request to

10

MR. NISHIMURA:

Did he respond?

11

MS. SUZUKI:

12

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

He said it looked good.
I think one of the

13

board members also brought up an issue regarding union.

14

So perhaps maybe we should pose a question to Marc in

15

regards to that.

16

MR. OYAMA:

17

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

18
19

Yeah.
The union issues.

So

I'm not certain anyone can answer that now.
MS. YANO:

To address the tax issue, we

20

could include it in the employee's payroll.

21

maybe we could just issue them a certificate in that

22

same amount and it's entered into the payroll and so the

23

taxes are taken out when they receive it.

24
25

MR. CRADDICK:

And so

What was your question?

You

wanted to get something in writing from Marc or what was
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1

the -- or, no, the union you were talking about?
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

2

Well, she's saying

3

that we can handle this through the employee payroll

4

system, then I find that should be the legality of being

5

able to do that.

6

you know.

7

give them a bonus, how would that affect, you know.

I don't see anything wrong with that,

I guess the question came up, if you just

8

MR. OYAMA:

9

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

10

The union issue.
Separate -- it's a

separate issue rather than --

11

MR. CRADDICK:

This isn't a bonus.

12

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

13

a recognition.

14

possibly in the payroll, I think.

15

suggestion that --

Well, not a bonus, but

If you could include that in the --

16

MS. SUZUKI:

17

MR. CRADDICK:

Or it would be prize money.
If the prize is non -- I

18

mean, prizes are still taxable.

19

you still got to pay taxes.

20

MS. SUZUKI:

21

MR. CRADDICK:

You know with the

If you win the lottery,

I know, but -I don't know that.

I mean,

22

if they get it, they have to pay their own taxes and

23

stuff on it.

24

just going to show up on their total taxes.

25

person individually is going to have to do their own

And if we deduct some amount off, that's
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1
2
3
4

taxes.
MS. SUZUKI:

Do you guys want to submit a

request to Guyot?
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Do you want to have

5

more questions or try to deal with this more and just

6

defer this item at this point?

7

for the rewards program?

8
9
10
11
12
13

MR. CRADDICK:

Is there a critical time

Nothing other than the

budget is coming up and we're trying to get these things
resolved before we submit a budget to the board.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Okay.

But we should

be able to tackle this issue by next meeting, right?
MR. CRADDICK:

Yeah, yeah, you could.

But

14

then we have to guess at what you're going to do and put

15

it in the budget.

I don't like guessing.

16

MR. NISHIMURA:

17

MR. CRADDICK:

18

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

19

MR. NISHIMURA:

20

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

21

What is the total on this?
$1,400.
1,500.

I wouldn't worry about it.
Yeah, I mean, the

majority of it is travel fund there anyway.

22

MR. CRADDICK:

No, we probably would --

23

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

24

MR. CRADDICK:

25

MR. NISHIMURA:

Take that out?

Yeah.
I would just put a dollar
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1

amount, and then we can refine it.
MR. OYAMA:

2
3

the project.

And if it all clears, you got

So I guess defer it is in order, right?
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

4

We have till June

We would defer this on

5

the board regular meeting schedule and not defer this to

6

committee.

7

committee, finance committee.

8

board meeting.
MR. OYAMA:

9
10

I don't see any sense in sending this to

Okay.

MR. McCORMICK:

12

MS. SUZUKI:

14

Mr. Chair, I move to

defer this 12-63 report.

11

13

Just defer it to the next

Second.

And a request for legal

opinion?
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Yeah, the request

15

would be that under the circumstances if this is added

16

to payroll, you know, for the employee and how would

17

that affect, if anything, the issues?

18

MR. OYAMA:

19

MS. SUZUKI:

20

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Possible wages.
And the union.
Well, how would that

21

affect union issues because, I believe, they have a

22

certain pay amount that they have staffed, you know, as

23

union employees with a certain scale.

24

know, that happens.

25

not a problem.

And then, you

If everything else is fine, then

But some questions out there.
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1

as you know, most of the union members at a certain

2

scale, they have comp time or different kind of time and

3

overtime and so forth.

4

looked at?

Thank you for that.

So we have a motion on the floor -- do we have

5
6

That's all.

And then how would a reward be

a motion on the floor to defer?

7

MR. NISHIMURA:

8

MR. OYAMA:

9

Moved by Ray, seconded by

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

You guys are moving

fast.
MR. McCORMICK:
by Roy.

No, I seconded it.

Moved

I seconded it.

16

MR. NISHIMURA:

17

MR. OYAMA:

18

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

19

I seconded it --

Roy.

14
15

Yeah, we do.

MR. NISHIMURA:

12
13

Yes, we do.

I mean, I made the motion and Ray seconded it.

10
11

I don't believe --

Moved by Roy.

Yeah, yeah.
Okay.

With that

motion, all in favor signify by saying aye.

20

Any opposed?

21

Hearing none, motion carried.

22

Manager's Report 12-64, county human resources

23
24
25

reorganization.
Mr. Craddick, you have the floor.
MR. CRADDICK:

Okay.

On this one here, we
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1

have had no official communication from the county in

2

writing, but the previous board chair and myself went

3

and talked to the mayor about this issue.

4

them a copy of this report here and actually invited

5

them to come to this meeting if they wanted to come to

6

this meeting and explain what they're doing better than

7

I might explain it.

8

MR. NISHIMURA:

9

MR. CRADDICK:

10
11

MR. NISHIMURA:

I did send

Who is they?
The county administration.
The task force or who did

you send it to?

12

MR. CRADDICK:

13

MR. OYAMA:

14

MR. NISHIMURA:

15

MR. CRADDICK:

16

MR. OYAMA:

17

MR. CRADDICK:

18

MR. OYAMA:

19

MR. CRADDICK:

The mayor and Gary and --

John Isobe.
He retired.
Yeah, he's not here.

Really.

When?

January 8.

That's old news then.
Anyhow, there's a couple of

20

things going on.

One, there's some talk on the charter

21

review to somehow rework the personnel services or maybe

22

even add an HR department.

23

wanting to start up an HR department without benefit of

24

any charter change, so basically working it under the

25

same -- let's see.

And then you have the county

What would we call it?

Anyways, the
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1

same charter that we have now.

Instead of calling it a

2

personnel, calling it a human resources.
And each department has people in it.

3

And I

4

wish Larry was here today, because I know they have a

5

pretty big component in their section there of people

6

that do HR work.

7

much dedicated to that.

But we have one person that's pretty

8

Well, you pull those people out of the office,

9

then is this next group going to provide 100 percent of

10

that service?

That's the question.

And in listening -- the fire chief seems to do

11
12

almost 100 percent of their local training, the chief

13

himself.

14

to be able to pull the chief away to this HR department

15

and provide that service.

16

do it.

And so, you know, obviously they're not going

Somebody's going to have to

Training that we do is provided in a similar

17
18

manner.

19

own funds a person -- and if office staff is missing,

20

that person will help fill in answering phones, stuff

21

like that.

22

They can't take that away.

We pay out of our

If that person is gone, we don't have that.

And then the very last issue, and this Roy and

23

I brought up with the mayor, that we currently pay about

24

900 and some thousand dollars to the county for this

25

service that we're supposed to be getting, and so would
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1

they expect us to give more if they took this employee.

2

And so that's really in the bottom line what

3

I'm getting down to is right there, is if they decide

4

that that's what they want to do, pull these employees

5

out, are we going to send money with them or are we

6

going to not send money because we're already paying for

7

the service?

8

But we do get it, but it's on a kind of

9

catch-as-catch-can basis.

10

And I feel not really getting any service.

And that's -- that's kind the issue there.

So

11

as we close -- I haven't gotten a letter saying, we want

12

the person and we want so much in the budget.

13

know, lacking, I guess, a letter like that, maybe

14

there's nothing for you to do.

15

So, you

But if between now and budget time, we got a

16

letter like that, I mean, this isn't something that

17

you'd want to have an emergency board meeting on, I

18

don't think.

19

So if we got some direction from you, it would

20

be very handy.

21

that's probably okay, too.

22

But I thought I'd give you a little better presentation

23

of our meeting there that the former board chair and

24

myself had with the mayor.

25

If you don't want to give any direction,
We'll muddle through it.

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Any questions,
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1
2

Members?
My recommendation is that before we move on

3

with this matter, perhaps we should have a job

4

description of this position.

5

over, what are some of the roles that would play in

6

serving the water department?
MR. CRADDICK:

7
8

Yeah, none of that.

We

don't have any of that now.
MR. OYAMA:

9
10

If this position is going

He's asking that we probably

should draw it up.

11

MR. CRADDICK:

No, we wouldn't do it.

12

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

We got to ask them.

13

mean, you know, if they do this for a position like

14

this, then what are the responsibilities of that

15

position to the board?

16

MR. OYAMA:

17

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

18

Right.

MR. OYAMA:

20

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

22

Right now for us to

take any action to look at anything like this, you know.

19

21

I

It's a good point.
We're just poking in

the blind.
MR. CRADDICK:

Well, you're -- I mean, they

23

can probably take the position whether you say or not.

24

They can't take the money whether you say or not.

25

what I'm trying to get from you is, should they take the
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1

position, are you willing it give the money with it?
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

2

Well, it depends on

3

what they're going to do with the Department of Water.

4

I mean, if they're going to do it one-fourth or zero,

5

then, of course not.

MR. OYAMA:

6
7

They're not taking back our

services.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

8
9

There's got to be some --

to find out.

Yeah.

I mean, we need

So go ahead, you're going to take this

10

position, but what's going to happen with water?

11

of the duties of the board, is what I'm saying.

12

half?

13

board can't even make a decision.

Is it three-quarter?

MR. CRADDICK:

14

I mean, is it zero?

Some
Is it
The

I think then that your

15

answer to this particular request is then, no, we

16

wouldn't send any money without knowing those things.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

17

I'm not certain.

I

18

just brought this up for the questions as chair of this

19

committee.
Come with a straight answer.

20
21

MR. CRADDICK:

22

MR. NISHIMURA:

23
24
25

hydrants.

No.

Chair of the whole board.
That's a lot of water

That's all I know.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

So, I mean, you know,

water is the -- well, let let me ask this:

What is the,
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1

I would say, the position of the board members at this

2

time?

3
4

MR. NISHIMURA:

Now, this was -- your

report was distributed?

5

MR. CRADDICK:

Distributed?

6

MR. NISHIMURA:

7

MR. OYAMA:

8

MR. NISHIMURA:

9

MR. CRADDICK:

To.

Yes.
The task force or whoever?
Not the task force, 'cause I

10

-- to tell you the truth, I don't know much about it.

11

All I know is that the mayor --

12

MR. OYAMA:

John was working on it.

13

MR. CRADDICK:

Called the mayor, or called

14

the former board chair and myself to his office

15

explaining what they're doing.

16

one time to go check over what duties and

17

responsibilities our HR person had.

18

them, but other than that, what's going on I really

19

don't have anything much that I can report to you on.

20

don't know what's going on.

21

Somebody made a request

They talked to

They did have a full meeting with all the

22

department heads, and all I can do is tell you what

23

happened at that meeting.

24

-- well, I'm not even going to repeat all the things

25

that were said at that meeting.

And from that meeting there

But it's not going to
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1

be something that -- you know, you're not the only ones

2

with the concern that you've raised here today.

3

put it that way.
MR. OYAMA:

4

Yeah, they didn't have any

5

solid answers for all the questions.

6

say.

7

why I got John from the beginning.

But I know John was involved.

8

MR. CRADDICK:

9

MR. OYAMA:

10

Let's

That's all I can
That's the reason

Was he there at the meeting?

No, he wasn't there at the

meeting.

11

MR. CRADDICK:

12

MR. OYAMA:

Wasn't there, yeah.

Yeah.

Because when they called

13

me, I said, you know, I think we got to talk to the

14

mayor direct.

15
16
17
18
19
20
21

That's what I told him.
MR. NAKAYA:

So the county doesn't have a

timeline as to when they're planning to implement- -MR. CRADDICK:

They're planning to

implement this July 1st with their new budget.
MR. OYAMA:

Yeah.

And I thought I heard

him say that they had the budget for the positions.
MR. CRADDICK:

Yeah, yeah, because they're

22

taking them out of the various departments.

23

can't pull our money unless, you know, like say, the

24

attorney, we willingly gave.

25

MR. OYAMA:

Yeah.

But they

A fair share.
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1

MR. CRADDICK:

Well, again, you know, when

2

you're paying the 900,000 that you already paid, I think

3

we're probably paying our fair share.

4

because we had that bond thing, I mean, there was just

5

too much stuff to have it delayed over there and it was

6

well worth the additional expense.

7

not be well worth the additional expense.

8
9

But, you know,

This one here may

I don't really see what the benefit would be
because the issues that they're trying to address, which

10

are basically county liabilities, training and stuff

11

like that, are not the problems we're having.

12

having problems with classifications, getting positions

13

filled, and that is not being changed.

We're

14

They're not saying this person is -- who's

15

heading up this HR is going to report to the mayor.

16

It's still under the same civil service commission

17

because they're -- the civil service commission is there

18

because of state law.

19

separate it from the administration so the

20

administration doesn't convolute the classification

21

system, if you will.

22

And it's purposely there to

And so they require this independence from the

23

administration.

It's my understanding.

I talked at

24

length with Malcolm about this, too.

25

put his words in here a little bit, too, on why he feels

And so I kind of
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1

it is the way it is.

Now, it doesn't mean that the

2

county couldn't do an HR department, and I don't know if

3

they can do it with or without the charter.
But it sounds to me like they're working --

4
5

they would still have the head of this group reporting

6

to the civil service commission.

7

used the word in here, knee-jerk reaction.

8

just my impression.

9

reaction that's going on over there.

And I -- you know, I
But that's

I'm hoping it's not a knee-jerk

'Cause we're not the only ones having this

10
11

problem with the classifications and filling positions.

12

There's other departments that are having the same

13

problem.

14

that problem with the proposed changes.

15

training issues and things like that.

16
17
18

But I don't see what they're doing to address
It's more

And I see Debra in the back there.

If you got

more specific questions, she might be able to help.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

I guess, you know, for

19

my recommendation as chair, is that because we know it's

20

unclear as to how the funding of this position, you

21

know, would be in the best interest of DOW, like I said,

22

just to deal with it financially and whether it will

23

speed up organization or reviews of positions or

24

reorganization.

25

questions, you know, maybe we should pose this to them.

Until we have some answers to those
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1

It should be posed to them.
MR. CRADDICK:

2
3

but the real issue is this money more than anything.
MR. OYAMA:

4
5

We definitely can do that,

Well, you should list it, too.

You should list it.
MR. CRADDICK:

6

And keeping in mind, you

7

know, maybe I'm making a problem out of nothing, because

8

they haven't made any request at this point.
MR. OYAMA:

9
10

direction on it.
MR. NISHIMURA:

11
12

MR. CRADDICK:

No yet, I don't believe.

I

would be in March sometime.
MR. OYAMA:

15
16

Have they submitted the

budget to counsel yet?

13
14

Yeah, they didn't put the

They're going to do that after

March.
MR. CRADDICK:

17

No, no, my understanding is

18

they're doing it for this budget, this setup will be in

19

the budget.

20

MR. OYAMA:

Yeah.

That's what I'm saying,

21

at the March budget would be firm, I guess, they're

22

going to put in that.

23
24
25

So they have to have a plan.

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Yeah, and what's the

plan, is it what we're asking?
MR. OYAMA:

Right.
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1

MR. NISHIMURA:

2

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

3

MR. NISHIMURA:

4

Mr. Chair.

Move to receive and defer

Manager's Report 12-64 to the next meeting?

5

MR. OYAMA:

6

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

7

MR. OYAMA:

8

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

9

Sir.

Second.
Second?

Yep, second.
Do we have any further

discussions on that?
MR. NISHIMURA:

10

Yes.

I'd like to see

11

whatever correspondence that the department has seen to

12

date on this matter.

13

MR. CRADDICK:

14

MR. NISHIMURA:

15

MR. CRADDICK:

16

MR. NISHIMURA:

Nothing.
Nothing?
Nothing.
Not even inviting you to

17

the meeting or an agenda for those meetings or anything

18

like that?

19

inkling as to what they're talking about.
MR. CRADDICK:

20
21

So that we can at least get some kind of

meeting.

22

MR. OYAMA:

23

MR. CRADDICK:

24

MR. NISHIMURA:

25

There was no agenda for the

They called by phone.
Yeah, called by phone, yeah.
Chair, maybe we should go

talk story with the mayor.
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1

MR. CRADDICK:

2

MR. OYAMA:

3

You go, too, Daryl.

Take David

along.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

4
5

We did.

the floor?

I'm joking.

Okay.

6

Is there a motion on

I'll go ahead and follow up on these

7

issues and report back to the board.

8

the next board meeting.
MR. OYAMA:

9

At

Good.

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

10

How is that?

Deferred on the

11

condition that I can get an appointment with the mayor

12

and discuss this issue.

13

MR. OYAMA:

14

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

15

Very good.

Nishimura.

16

MR. NISHIMURA:

17

MR. CRADDICK:

18

Along with Randy

What day was this?
Sometime after the 4th of

March.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

19

Okay.

So with that,

20

the motion is on the floor that we'll have the chair

21

make a report back to the next board meeting, about the

22

meeting with the mayor and possibly get some more

23

information on this.

24

this?

25

So going to receive and defer

Is that how?
MR. OYAMA:

Yeah, the motion was and
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1

seconded.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

2
3

Okay.

favor.

4

Any opposed?

5

Hearing none, motion carried.

6

Okay.

7

Now, staff reports, monthly staff

reports.
MS. YANO:

8
9

All those in

Mr. Chair, for the fiscal

division, my report on the budget status summary as of

10

December 31, 2011, and it's included in your packet.

11

if you have any questions, please feel free to ask.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

12

Board members, any

13

questions on the statement of the Water Department's

14

revenues and expenditures presented by Marites?
Mr. Craddick, yes, sir.

15

MR. CRADDICK:

16
17

I'm not a board member, but

--

18

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

19

MR. CRADDICK:

Okay, Manager.

So we don't run afoul in the

20

audit this time, are we -- we don't have the thing --

21

the billing for the fire system corrected yet with

22

Honolulu, right?

23
24
25

So

MS. YANO:

I'm working with Laurie at the

Honolulu Board of Water Supply, and she gives -MR. CRADDICK:

Do you think we should get
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1

these numbers adjusted this time so that we're watching

2

the overcharge on the fire system so that we don't go

3

through the same thing we went through last year?
MS. YANO:

4

I'm hoping that I could get it

5

resolved not later than next month at least so we could

6

get the exact amount of adjustments.

7

we have over 200 AMF accounts.

8

the actual -- I mean, it can, but it just takes a lot of

9

time to do it manually.

Because we get --

It is impossible to get

So I'm just hoping that the

10

correct rates will be corrected in the billing system so

11

that the actual adjustments would be done.
MR. CRADDICK:

12

Anyways, what we'll do is

13

watch this.

14

try and get an adjustment to this so that if it goes

15

beyond just hoping that we have an actual something

16

there so that we can reduce the revenues down

17

accordingly so that when we get to audit time we don't

18

have the auditors saying that we weren't watching it

19

this time.

20

And if we go beyond next month, then we'll

So whether -- I mean, we can't depend on

21

Honolulu, I think, at this point.

22

they go beyond next month.

23

last quarter.

24
25

And especially if

We're getting down to the

So we'll try and do something there.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Okay.

Any further

questions on the report of revenues and expenditures?
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1

MR. NISHIMURA:

Chair.

2

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

3

MR. NISHIMURA:

Go ahead.

I would like to ask the

4

fiscal department to add something to their report, and

5

that would be a simple update on the audit items, status

6

of audit items.

7
8
9

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

The motion would be to receive this.
MR. OYAMA:

11

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

12

MS. SUZUKI:

13

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

14

MR. CRADDICK:

I move to receive.

Or approve?

Receive it and add the

update on the audit items.
MR. OYAMA:

17

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Right, right.
Okay.

So I have the

motion on the floor.

19

MR. OYAMA:

20

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

21

MR. NAKAYA:

22

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

23

Is that right?

(Moves head up and down.)

16

18

Any other

discussion or comments on the presentation?

10

15

So noted.

Yes.
And a second?

Second.
Second, we do.

All

those in favor.

24

Motion carried.

25

Report by the PR specialist on PR activities.
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MS. SHIRAMIZU:

1
2

this time, is before you.

If you have any questions.

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

3
4

So my report, two pages

questions or comments?

5

MR. McCORMICK:

6

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

7

MR. McCORMICK:

8

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

9

Forget the raise.

Okay.

With that, we

will go ahead -MR. NISHIMURA:

11

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

12

MR. NISHIMURA:

13

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Aaaah -Yes, sir.

Move to receive.
All right.

Do I have

a second on that?

15

MR. McCORMICK:

16

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

17

What's that?

Forget the raise.

10

14

Board Members, any

Second.
Thank you.

All in

favor say aye.

18

Any opposed?

19

Hearing none, Motion carried.

20

Chief of operations.
MR. REYNA:

21

Good afternoon.

Included in

22

your packets is the January 2012 report for operations

23

division.

24

utility worker will be retiring effective March 1st.

25

Most notable would be on the personnel.

Our

And on the second page, you will note that our
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Honolulu, Hawaii
(808)524-2090

60

1

overtime went down as compared to last month or the

2

previous month.

3

overnight work related to Water Plan 2020, no overnight

4

time for the past month.

This is because we did not have any

And also we have intermittently been operating

5
6

our Amfac shaft.

7

holiday -- weekend and holiday overtime for our staff.
If you have any questions, please let me know.

8

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

9
10

That way we can reduce overtime and

Questions, Board

Members, or comments?

11

MR. NISHIMURA:

Move to receive, Mr. Chair.

12

MR. McCORMICK:

Second.

13

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

14

receive.

Moved and seconded to

All in favor.

15

Any opposed?

16

Hearing none, motion carried.

17

Manager's monthly update.

18
19
20
21
22
23

MR. CRADDICK:

Planning subdivision and

water resources.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Water resources and

planning subdivision report.
Mr. Fujikawa, I believe we have -MR. FUJIKAWA:

You know, we submit this

24

report to the manager on a monthly basis and subdivision

25

action between us and planning.
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CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

1
2

members on this?

Any questions by board

You have the item before you.

3

MR. NISHIMURA:

Mr. Chair.

4

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

5

MR. NISHIMURA:

Yes.

Not about this report, but

6

just curious, Gregg, how's that Waikalua, Waikalua?

7

Waiakalua, the backflow preventer stuff?

8

coming in?
MR. FUJIKAWA:

9

Are they

You know, we gave them a

10

pull-the-meter notice back in February.

We were all

11

ready to do that.

12

consumers who we thought was not responding.

We identified about 12 really --

So last-ditch effort we went and did house

13
14

calls.

We drove up there and talked to them.

I did

15

more extensive telephone calls.

16

to talk to all of them, and the findings are that they

17

all understand why this is needed and there's no

18

opposition.

Today we've been able

We're at a point where they're all proceeding

19
20

to install the preventers as we require it.

21

the installation has not been 100 percent complete, but

22

we're moving toward that.

23

that said they're going to do it, but they haven't done

24

it yet.

25

And to date

So there's about 12, a dozen,

But we're tracking that.
We think that if everything goes according to
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1

plan, that all of the meters should be properly

2

installed and tested within maybe a month and a half.

3

MR. NISHIMURA:

4

MR. FUJIKAWA:

Okay.

Thank you.

They all cite material

5

shortages and need for consultants and stuff.

6

giving them like somebody would.
MR. CRADDICK:

7

So we're

The two that had hired an

8

attorney also, they're also going ahead, putting it in

9

and not trying to fight it.

10

MR. NISHIMURA:

11

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

12

MR. NISHIMURA:

13

MS. SUZUKI:

14

Shucks, Andrea.
Good job.

Thank you.

Shucks, Andrea.

David did some fine letter

writing.

15

MR. CRADDICK:

16

MR. OYAMA:

With assistance.

Well, we thank the department

17

for the hard work and good understanding and diligence

18

to follow through and go through to made them convinced.

19

So that's very good.

MR. FUJIKAWA:

20
21

Thank you.

MR. OYAMA:

23

MR. FUJIKAWA:

25

It's good that we never

crossed the line and tried to sell.

22

24

Very good job.

to.

That's right.

That's right.

And not that we're not going

We have that -MR. OYAMA:

Yes, you have the authority.
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MR. FUJIKAWA:

1
2

haven't decided yet.

So ...

MR. OYAMA:

3

-- alternative, but we

Yeah, that's kind of the

4

department.

I think, you know, you need to be all

5

recognized for that.

6

don't know, who's going to throw the party?

Very good.

7

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

8

MR. NISHIMURA:

9

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

10

When it's all done.

David Craddick.

Roy Oyama.
Okay.

With that, do I

have a motion on the floor to receive this report?

11

MR. OYAMA:

12

MR. McCORMICK:

13

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Yep.
Second.
Moved and seconded.

14

All in favor say aye.

15

Any opposed?

16

Hearing none, motion carried.

17

Manager's monthly update.
MR. CRADDICK:

18
19

I

Okay.

There's one contract

award for Kukuiolono, that half-million-gallon tank.
Personnel, we have -- if we didn't have it, I

20
21

know we have one more retirement besides what you

22

already heard.

23

So total four employees going to be lost in the next --

24

well, they're not all right away.

25

month.

And two more -- well, two resignations.

Some are like next

Some are in a couple months.
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The -- let's see.

1

Are we missing the -- we're

2

missing the finance one here, huh?

3

month.

4

MR. NISHIMURA:

5

MR. CRADDICK:

6

MR. CRADDICK:
MR. OYAMA:

11

MR. CRADDICK:

14

MR. CRADDICK:

MR. NISHIMURA:

3.548.
3.5, yeah.

So you can see

Beginning to worry about

your report.

18

MR. CRADDICK:

19

MR. NISHIMURA:

22

So the payout amount there,

the contract amounts going out pretty quick now.

16

21

Yeah, yeah.

figure out the total here.
MR. NISHIMURA:

20

That's three pages to

Big report.

13

17

Okay, okay.

your report.

10

15

Oh, next page.

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

9

12

Next page.

Sorry.

7
8

The payouts this

What's that?
I'm beginning to worry

about your report.
MR. CRADDICK:
find it on here.

Oh, here we go.

I couldn't

At the bottom here, 3.548 million.

23

And then one conveyance of water facility.

24

And then I did go to Washington for -- with

25

NRWA lobbying again.

That seems to have been fairly
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1

successful.

Last year was especially successful.

We

2

actually got the things that they dropped out in 2010

3

back in the budget.

4

for bid the training.

5

back and get that training program reimplemented.

Then just this morning, EPA put out
So in theory we should get that

And then the senator did get for us an

6
7

additional circuit rider for Hawaii, so and that person

8

they've already hired.

9

state.

That's it.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

10
11

So that's a benefit to the

any questions for Mr. Craddick?

Okay.

Board comments.

Seeing none, I'd like to have a motion to

12
13

receive the manager's monthly report.

14

MR. OYAMA:

15

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

16

So move.

MR. McCORMICK:

18

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

19

Any opposed?

20

Hearing none.

All those in favor.

believe.
We'll move on for topics for next water board

23

25

Second.

There's no executive session issue today, I

21

24

Can I have a second on

that?

17

22

Board Members,

meeting.

We have the proposed budget.
MR. NISHIMURA:

Any other items?

Mr. Chair.
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1

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

2

MR. NISHIMURA:

Yes, sir.

I would like a report for a

3

summary from the department citing their concerns

4

regarding potable (sic) water issues for the board to be

5

able to review.

6

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

7

MR. NISHIMURA:

8

issues.

10

Non-potable water system issues.
Any other topics that

board members have?
MR. CRADDICK:

11
12

Non-potable water system

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

9

Summary of --

This is just generic you're

talking about?
MR. NISHIMURA:

13

System issues.

You know, I

14

know you guys got issues, but, you know, we've never

15

seen what the issues are.

16

and when the time comes to --

And it's -- you know, if we

17

MR. CRADDICK:

18

MR. NISHIMURA:

19

That's --

I'd like to be able to

refer to something.
MR. CRADDICK:

20
21

Well, okay.

Yeah, that's why I asked you

if you're talking about just generic.

22

MR. NISHIMURA:

23

MR. CRADDICK:

Generic.
And nothing specific.

24

Because the specific one that we're working on is

25

unusual.

It's not a non-potable system that we're
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1

operating.

If it was a non-potable system that we were

2

operating, we wouldn't have any concerns.

3

case the system is not being turned over to us, and it

4

has to operate in perpetuity just like our system has to

5

operate in perpetuity.

6

MR. NISHIMURA:

7

MR. CRADDICK:

But in this

Is that our responsibility?
Yes, because if it doesn't

8

operate and work in perpetuity and all the costumers

9

jump over to our system, we're going to have an

10
11
12
13

$18 million expense.
MR. NISHIMURA:

No.

Then, you know, that

should be highlighted as part of -CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Right.

I want to

14

limit the discussion at this time to bring that up

15

rather than to point some facts out at this time.

16

chair I would recommend that if you have any additional

17

-- board members have any additional items to discuss on

18

the non-potable or any other items, bring it before our

19

secretary and then have some of that brought up at the

20

next board meeting.

21

MR. OYAMA:

As

I just wanted to point out on

22

the subject of this non-potable, could you list, you

23

know, all of the issues you have and the pro and cons so

24

that we can have a comparison and better understand the

25

area of the problems that is before you and us.
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1

MR. CRADDICK:

2

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

3

MR. OYAMA:

4
5
6
7

Okay.
Okay.

Then we can maybe walk through

it in a better process.
MR. CRADDICK:

Okay.

Now, I won't be at

the next board meeting.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Well, that's fine.

Do

8

you have someone who can do the report, and that someone

9

can make the report?

10

MR. CRADDICK:

11

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

12

Yeah.

you've got a deputy.

13

MR. CRADDICK:

14

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

15

Okay.

17

board meeting, Members?

19

Again, if you do come up with some of them, we
can get that -- have some time, right, Dave, to -MR. CRADDICK:

21

MR. OYAMA:

23

It's only a report.

Any other topics for the next water

20

22

No problem.

So it's nothing that action is going to be taken on.

16

18

I mean, that's why

Yeah, yeah, yeah.

And just started to so that,

you know, we could massage it more and more.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

And I'm not certain I

24

can bring this up here, but on our Saturday agenda

25

meetings, can I bring this up here at this as we set the
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1

agenda meetings?

2

MR. OYAMA:

Yeah, sure.

3

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

I was hoping if we

4

could probably set the agenda meeting after we get

5

either some reports out from like this current meeting

6

we have somehow before we set the agenda meeting.

7

MR. OYAMA:

8

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

9

Move to --

have to be --

10

MR. OYAMA:

11

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

12

I mean, it doesn't

A brief.
I mean, a lot of

times -- yeah.

13

MR. OYAMA:

A brief report.

14

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Yeah, as we try to set

15

agenda meetings, you know, I'm not saying that -- you

16

know, I'm just saying that somehow --

17

MR. OYAMA:

18

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

At least to pave the way.
Yeah, a person my age

19

sometimes forget, huh, what some of the discussions

20

were?

21

refer sometimes to what occurred at a board meeting to

22

move along our next.

23

accomplish that, but I hopefully --

24
25

And I try to keep notes on it, but it's good to

So I'm not how certain we can

MR. OYAMA:

The direction of paving the way

so that we can be put on the agenda and then we have an
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1

idea what we have.
MR. NISHIMURA:

2
3

have a draft of the minutes as well.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

4
5

MR. NISHIMURA:

Draft of the transcript or

whatever.

8

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

9

MR. NISHIMURA:

10

Is that a possibility,

that we have a --

6
7

Just a suggestion that you

Or something.

It doesn't have to be

signed.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

11

A draft is fine.

12

doesn't have to be in its final form.

13

MR. OYAMA:

14

It

But you can't oppose that, that

way, right?
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

15

We'll continue that

16

discussion.

17

thought -- I'll throw it out.

So we'll see.

18

possible.

We'll try to deal with

19

what we can deal with with my notes.

If it's

Okay.

getting to the future water board meetings?
There's no action that we need to take on

22
23

If not, then fine.

I just

Any other topics for next board meeting or

20
21

It's not on the floor right now.

these?

24

MR. OYAMA:

No.

25

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

It's just for
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1

discussion purposes.
So quarterly reports, employee of the year

2
3

resolution, amend BAB project list.
MR. NISHIMURA:

4

Members?

Well, if you're not going

5

to be here, we're still going to get the budget, though,

6

yeah, by next meeting?
MR. CRADDICK:

7
8

Yeah, yeah, yeah.

We're

working hard to finish that up.
MR. NISHIMURA:

9

Just checking.

10

MR. CRADDICK:

We finished a month early.

11

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Okay.

Moving on to

12

upcoming events, Hawaii section of the AWWA, April 17 to

13

the 20th.

14

you need to give notice on that.

So board members, anyone is going to attend,

MR. CRADDICK:

15

Right, Mr. Craddick?

Well, I think at the last

16

meeting the board assigned you to pick people to go to

17

the national convention.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

18
19

The national convention.

I've already done that.

20

MR. CRADDICK:

21

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

22

25

Okay.
We're going to get to

that on number two.
MR. NISHIMURA:

23
24

I know the big one.

I'm going to be sick that

week.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

And for the AWWA
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1

national conference, I know we had a couple of the board

2

members stated at the last meeting that they wouldn't be

3

able to attend, am I correct?

4

Nakaya, I myself cannot, and I also checked in with

5

other board members.

6

commitments and won't be able to attend.

7

It was Mr. McCormick, Mr.

Mr. Dahilig also has some

And therefore, I suggested Mr. Roy Oyama,

8

Mr. Larry Dill, and Randy Nishimura go to the conference

9

and bring back all the good information we need and give

10

it to the board.

And I believe we had four positions on

11

that to go to the conference?

12

MS. YANO:

I think there's four.

13

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

14

MR. EDDY:

15

MR. CRADDICK:

16

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

Four?

Four.
Yes.
And in turn my

17

suggestion was that maybe we should approach the mayor

18

to go because they're due for a board conference, right,

19

coming up shortly?

20

guy, a kind of person that can promote Kauai to possibly

21

have a conference here on Kauai.
MR. NISHIMURA:

22
23

I will auction my trip off,

at the Poipu -CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

24
25

And the mayor, I believe, is a good

Mr. Craddick?

Any additions to that,

If not --
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1

MR. CRADDICK:

Okay.

2

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

So the suggestion

3

would be that I would write a letter to the mayor, I

4

guess.

5

MR. OYAMA:

Yes.

6

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

And sign as a board

7

member hoping that he will be able to attend or delegate

8

that can help promote the island at the time to speak to

9

some of the members of the AWWA board.

10

Mr. Craddick?

11

MR. CRADDICK:

12

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

13

That's right.

MR. CRADDICK:

15

MR. NISHIMURA:

I think it's possible.
I told you, I'm going to be

sick that week.

17

MR. CRADDICK:

18

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

19
20

And hopefully get them

here to attend like a conference, along with Randy.

14

16

Is that correct,

on.

The weather in Dallas.
With that, let's move

Bill?
MR. EDDY:

Excuse me, Mr. Chair.

I just

21

wanted to let you folks know about one more upcoming

22

event for this.

23

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

24

MR. EDDY:

25

Beach on March 25th.

Okay.

It's a department party at Poipu

It's a Sunday.

The board is
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1

invited.
MR. CRADDICK:

2
3

huh?

Or 25th, you said?

4

MR. EDDY:

5

MS. SHIRAMIZU:

6

MR. EDDY:

So the board is invited and

MS. SHIRAMIZU:

You can contact Carol.

She

should be contacting you for sign up.
MR. NISHIMURA:

11
12

We were going to move it to

invited to bring families and guests.

9
10

March 25th.

the 24th.

7
8

A beach party without me,

She sent something out

already, yeah.
CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:

13

Okay.

Sounds good.

14

also would like to make a suggestion.

15

another party, you can have it up at the ranch.

16

going to have bull riding and chasing sheeps, and horse

17

riding.

Okay.

18
19

So that might be fun.

March 22nd.

With that, next water board meeting,

Everyone's okay with that.
MR. OYAMA:

21

CHAIRMAN KANESHIRO:
It's set.

So far.
We'll cover that for

22

now.

23

other dates at later board meetings.

25

We're

Just upcoming events.

20

24

If you want

So we'll have some discussions on the

Anything else?

If not, this meeting is

adjourned.
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1

(Concluded at approximately 12:36 p.m.,

2

February 23, 2012.)

3

* * * * *

4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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1

STATE OF HAWAII

)
)
)

ss.

2

COUNTY OF KAUAI

3

I, TERRI R. HANSON, RPR, CSR 482, do hereby
certify:

4
5
6
7
8
9

That on Thursday, February 23, 2012, at 10:51
a.m. that the foregoing REGULAR MEETING, County of
Kauai, Board of Water Supply, was held;
That the foregoing proceedings were taken down by
me in machine shorthand and were thereafter reduced to
typewritten form under my supervision; that the
foregoing represents to the best of my ability, a true
and correct transcript of the proceedings had in the
foregoing matter.

10
11

I certify that I am not an attorney for any of
the parties hereto, nor in any way concerned with the
cause.

12
13

DATED this 17th day of March, 2012, in Kapaa,
Hawaii.

14
15
16

______________________________
TERRI R. HANSON, CSR 482
Registered Professional Reporter

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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1

COUNTY OF KAUAI

2

BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY

3

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING

4
5

Wednesday, February 29, 2012

6

9:04 - 10:08 a.m.

7
8

Second Floor, Microbiology Lab Building

9

Kauai County Department of Water
4398 Pua Loke Street

10

Lihue, Kauai, Hawaii 96766

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

REPORTED BY:

19

TERRI R. HANSON, CSR 482

20

Registered Professional Reporter
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APPEARANCES

1
2

BOARD MEMBERS:

3

Larry Dill

4

Roy Oyama

5

Randall Nishimura

6

Clyde Nakaya

7

STAFF:

8

David Craddick

9

William Eddy

10

Carol Beardmore
(Exited meeting page 3, 9:05 a.m.)

11
12

Marites Yano

13

Dustin Moises

14

Gregg Fujikawa

15

Val Reyna

16

Keith Aoki

17

Faith Shiramizu

18
19

GUEST:
Andrew Baker, via telephone

20
21
22
23
24
25
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FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING

1

MR. DILL:

2

Call this meeting of the finance

3

committee to order.

4

February 29, 2012.

5

Microbiology Lab Building at the Kauai Department of

6

Water in Lihue.

We're at the second floor of the

And can I ask for a roll call, please.

MS. BEARDMORE:

7
8

It is 9:00 a.m., Wednesday,

Yes, Mr. Chair.

Dill.
MR. DILL:

9

Present.

10

MS. BEARDMORE:

11

MR. NAKAYA:

12

MS. BEARDMORE:

13

(Carol Beardmore exited meeting.)

14

MR. DILL:

Clyde Nakaya.

Here.
Roy Oyama.

Thank you.

agenda.

You have the agenda before you.

16

motion to accept the agenda, please?

17

MR. NAKAYA:

18

MR. DILL:
second.

We have quorum.

And moving on to our

15

19

Larry

Can I have a

Move to accept the agenda.
We don't have anybody for a

I'll second that.

Can I second that?

20

All in favor.

21

Thank you.

22

And our business for discussion today, under

23
24
25

The agenda is accepted.

new business is our FRC rate schedule.
David, I turn it over to you, please.
MR. CRADDICK:

Okay.

What I've done is
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1

I've got SAIC to give a small presentation here because

2

both yourself and Clyde are new, and we've never really

3

gone over this from the time it was first given to the

4

board back in 2010 or -- yeah, 2010.

So this is Andrew

5

Baker from SAIC, formerly R.W. Beck.

And he's basically

6

prepared the schedule that's in your packet.
And so, Andy, I'll turn it over to you there.

7

MR. BAKER:

8
9

All right.

Thank you, David.

Good morning, Members of the Finance Committee and DW

10

staff.

I appreciate the opportunity to speak to you

11

today about the facilities reserve charge study update.

12

I mentioned to David that since I'm using a

13

different software than I've used in the past, so if

14

there are any issues with stopping during the

15

presentation or hearing me clearly, please let me know

16

and I'll get it fixed.

17

The focus of the presentation today is largely

18

on the methodology involved in the calculations, a brief

19

discussion of the existing facilities reserve charges or

20

FRC, the desired outcome of the analysis and some of the

21

considerations going forward.

22

for your questions at the end because I recognize this

23

is a complex issue.

24

any concerns that you have.

25

I'll try to leave time

I want to be sure that I address

The facility reserve charges for the county
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1

were last updated in 2004, and prior to that in 1993.

2

The update is necessary to direct changes in project

3

costs with the intent being that the changes -- the

4

charges continue to be equitable and that they

5

appropriately reflect the cost required for certain new

6

developments.
It was the Water Plan 2020 effort which was, I

7
8

believe, completed in 2001 that provided the technical

9

basis for that FRC update in 2004.

And that technical

10

groundwork, the long-term capital planning continues to

11

be the basis for parts of this update to the FRC with

12

more recent project and cost information used where it's

13

available.

14

You may note on this draft report that was, I

15

believe, provided as part of your board packet that it

16

refers to both the needs assessment study and the FRC

17

update.

18

the update in which the service standards, additional

19

demands resulting from development, deficiencies in

20

existing facilities, and the projection of capital

21

facility needs are identified.

22

Water Plan 2020 laid the groundwork for.

23

prerequisite to the FRC calculations that's required by

24

state statute.

25

The needs assessment study is the portion of

And that's part of what
It's also a

Just for clarity, the facility reserve charge
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1

is a one-time charge for a new connection.

2

commonly referred to as an impact fee or a system

3

development charge.

4

depending on where you are in the country.

5

Also

There are a couple different names

The FRC represents a proportionate share of the

6

cost of providing water service access.

The existing

7

charge is 4,600 for a single-family meter.

8

sizes are charged a higher fee proportional to their

9

higher typical level of consumption.

Larger meter

For most family

10

and hotel or resort connections, they're charged a fee

11

that's based either the meter size of the connection or

12

the single-family rate of 4,600 per unit, whichever of

13

those is higher to appropriately account for the demands

14

that they put on the water system.

15

There are, broadly speaking, four major steps

16

in the FRC update analysis.

17

assessment study, as I mentioned before.

18

technical basis for the needs assessment study is Water

19

Plan 2020.

20

First is the needs
As I said, the

So our process started with a review of the

21

capital program that was identified in that plan.

In

22

conjunction with that review, we worked with DW staff to

23

incorporate and updated both the system capacity and the

24

cost of identified projects.

25

decade since the cost estimates originally used for

Given that there's been a
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1

Water Plan 2020 were observed, I understand there's been

2

a variety of changes that need to be addressed.

3

Out of the needs assessment study we've

4

identified the list of existing system deficiencies, the

5

needs to support projected growth and costs associated

6

with those projects.

7

The second step in the update is an evaluation

8

of the full FRC methodology.

Just as there are a number

9

of different terms for an FRC, there are also different

10

methodologies that can be applied depending on the

11

specific details of a water system.

12

The American Water Works Association or AWWA

13

lays out the two most common approaches and its industry

14

standard in one manual.

15

The first method is the system buy-in method

16

which is also sometimes called the equity method.

17

for clarity, I'd like to state that it's an equity in

18

terms of investment, not in terms of fairness.

19

goal of both and all of these approaches and the

20

analysis as a whole to be equitable in the assessment of

21

the charges.

22

mean by that term.

23

Just

It's the

So I just want to be clear on what they

This method considers the situation from the

24

perspective of existing customers have provided equity

25

in the existing system through their rates and fees.
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1

And a new customer then, under this approach, should buy

2

into the system by paying a fee so that they have an

3

equity stake equal to existing customers.
According to the AWWA, this approach is

4
5

generally most applicable for systems where there is

6

excess existing capacity so they don't have any

7

immediate development needs.
The second method is the incremental cost

8
9

method.

This method considers the situation from the

10

standpoint of new development paying for the incremental

11

cost of system capacity needed to serve new development

12

with the intent of mitigating the impact of new growth

13

on existing customers' rates.

14

This also reflects the situation where new

15

capacity, for example, developing new sources of water,

16

is more expensive on a per-gallon basis than the

17

existing sources of water are.

18

to address because generally the most cost effective or

19

cheaper sources have already been developed.

20

This is a common concern

In cases where this method is less applicable

21

is when as with the other methods there is sufficient

22

capacity already in the water system to provide for new

23

growth or, alternatively, when the rate of growth is so

24

rapid that it's difficult to pin down a specific

25

incremental cost because it just fluctuates more rapidly
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1

than updates can address it.

2

The other important consideration in evaluating

3

methodology options is consistency with the state impact

4

fee statute.

5

generally conform to the statutory requirements.

6

are specific considerations that must be included in

7

either analysis, most significant of which is the

8

inclusion of a credit to ensure that new customers don't

9

double pay for the capacity required to serve them.

Either of the AWWA-recommended approaches
There

10

going to address that consideration in more detail in

11

just a little bit.

I'm

The third step in the calculation of the FR --

12
13

is the calculation of the FRC and the update to the

14

schedules.

15

calculation; source, storage, transmission/distribution

16

or T&D and the credit which I just mentioned.

There are four components to the FRC

The source and storage components are fairly

17
18

similar.

19

methodologies using the incremental cost method.

20

seemed to be the most appropriate -- most consistent

21

approach with the realities of your system.

22

based on the department's incremental cost to develop

23

new source capacity or new storage capacity.

24
25

Both are calculated based on our review of
It

So they're

I believe the table shown here should match
Table C-1 in your board packet, which I must stress is a
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1

draft table included for purposes of this discussion.

2

We're still in the process of working with DW staff to

3

finalize these numbers.

4

that we can sort of walk through the calculation steps

5

but not our final numbers by any means.

So the numbers here are here so

The table lists capital projects that have been

6
7

identified as being for new capacity.

It lists their

8

estimated costs, the amount of new capacity that they

9

will provide, and whether all or a portion of that new

10

capacity will be addressing existing system

11

deficiencies.
These numbers are considered in total for all

12
13

of these source projects identified.

And Table C-2 is

14

the same format just for storage projects.

15

considered separately.

They are

16

There's an adjustment that's made to account

17

for the increase costs of debts in a portion of these

18

projects.

19

to calculate a unit cost of growth related source

20

capacity.

21

well.

22

And then that total cost per growth is used

The same calculation is made for storage as

In the case of the transmission/distribution

23

component, it's recognized that there are existing

24

facilities that are able to serve new development, but

25

that additional facilities are also needed because the
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1

elements of both the system buy-in and incremental cost

2

methods are employed to determine the T&D component of

3

the FRC.
The intent of this calculation is to determine

4
5

the present value of the total system that will be

6

required to serve demand at the end of the study period

7

in 2030.

8

total cost of new transmission/distribution projects

9

that have been identified as necessary to serve

To accomplish this, the first calcula- -- the

10

projected new demand, which is on Table C-3 of your

11

board packet.

12

bonds, and that is included as well.

13

The same adjustment for a portion being

On Table C-4, which is a few pages, it works

14

through the calculation steps necessary to determine the

15

present value of the portion of the system that will

16

still be in service in 2030.

17

shown here, shows the present value of the whole system.

18

So it is the 38 million number there is from Table C-3.

19

So it's the new projects.

20

192 million, is the estimated value of the portion of

21

the system that's out there right now that won't have

22

been replaced.

23

Step eight, which I've

And then the next number, the

So the sum is the present value of the total

24

system that is going to be needed to serve whatever

25

projected demand is at the end of the study period.
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1

dividing that number by that projected demand we get

2

half our unit cost for transmission and distribution

3

capacity, same way that we were calculating that unit

4

cost for source and storage.

5

That FRC credit, which as I mentioned before,

6

is a statutory requirement, is designed to account for

7

the fact that new customers will pay either rates for

8

projects which eliminate existing deficiencies, the

9

storage, repair and replacement projects, and also for

10

debt service on existing facilities.

Because through

11

the previous three components that we have calculated a

12

fee that will cover the cost of new capacity, cover all

13

the costs of new capacity that are required to serve the

14

new customers.
And because it's not feasible to have the new

15
16

customers not pay the portion of the rates that goes to

17

existing deficiencies, the approach is instead to apply

18

credit against the fee to account for those future rate

19

payments.

20

present value of that difference over a 20-year horizon.

21

So the last step, I believe that's on Table C-6

As per the statute, this credit is the

22

of your packet, is the step of that calculation by the

23

way.

24
25

The last step is to put all of these components
together using the unit costs that were calculated in
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1

the previous steps and the level of service standards

2

that were identified in the needs assessment study to

3

determine the charge per equivalent residential unit or

4

single-family.
I'd like to reiterate that these numbers are

5
6

draft and still being updated.

We're included the

7

tables here so you can follow through the calculation

8

steps.
There are a few additional considerations I'd

9
10

like to address before we get into questions.

11

issues of the phase-in period.

12

approached more from a policy standpoint than an

13

analytical one as it's very difficult to project the

14

impact.

15

does not necessarily translate directly to a 50-percent

16

increase in revenue.

17

The

The question has to be

For example, a 50-percent increase in the fee

The time frame over which updated fees are

18

phrased in will, of course, have a direct impact on the

19

amount of revenues collected.

20

schedule is to phase in over a period of four years.

21

I believe the current

One potential concern with such a protracted

22

phase-in period is that it will make it difficult to

23

project revenue collection for those future years.

24

I'll get into why that is in just a moment.

25

And

The relationship with the recent rate package
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1

is another consideration.

As you likely recall, two

2

rate options were considered.

3

conservative level is FRC revenues and one more

4

optimistic so it increases the level.

One at a more

This may have given the impression of a direct

5
6

link between the rates and the FRC.

And I'd like to

7

clarify that while the level of rate increases is

8

dependent on the revenues collected, as you can see from

9

the calculations that we've worked through here, the

10

calculation of the FRC is not dependent on the rate

11

increase itself, but it's rather influenced only by what

12

the actual cost of providing that new capacity is.

13

So in my judgment an appropriate course of

14

action, recognizing that there is some relationship

15

between the rates, but it's a one-directional

16

relationship, is to once the phase-in period for any

17

revised FRC fees has been completed, reevaluate the

18

rates.

19

So that once you've seen what the new level of

20

revenues are, this could potentially reduce the need for

21

rate increases in the later years.

22

a more condensed phase-in period may be preferred.

23

Another reason that

Last consideration is related to the concern of

24

a rush of people paying for FRCs on projects that may

25

even be in the pipeline just so that they can get in
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1

before there is an increase to the fee.

2

significant issue for the department because by

3

accepting that payment for an FRC, the department is

4

committing to provide a system that can support that new

5

required capacity.

6

This is a

If a large number of people pay for FRCs now to

7

get in on the lower rate but do not actually install a

8

meter for a number of years, the department will still

9

be obligated to build the capacity for them and will

10

then, of course, be required to maintain that capacity.

11

However, because if no meter gets installed, they won't

12

-- the customer won't begin paying a service charge.

13

service charge is what is designed to pay for the cost

14

of just maintaining that baseline system capacity.

15

A

So in that situation there won't be any rate

16

revenue to pay for the cost of maintaining that system.

17

Even though nobody has started using that capacity,

18

there is still a cost associated with that.

19

At this point I'd like to move on and address

20

any general or specific questions that you may have.

21

Thank you.

22

MR. DILL:

I'll open up the floor.

If

23

anybody on the committee or not on the committee has any

24

questions on the presentation on the FRCs.

25

Okay.

Well, I think I do.

Thank you for your
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1

presentation.

2

digest.

3

made some notes.

4

need to study that some more, as I'm sure we all will.

I've gone through your earlier submittals and

MR. BAKER:

6

moment.

Let me pull that up.

One

Okay.
MR. DILL:

8
9

And now with your presentation, I'll

When we get down to Table, let me see, C-8.

5

7

For me, I can tell you it's a lot to

So on Table 8-C, if I follow you

correctly, all these numbers -- all these calculations

10

result in establishing the FRC for a 5/8-inch water

11

meter.

12

MR. BAKER:

13

MR. DILL:

14

And then that rate is 13,500.

And then based -MR. BAKER:

15
16

Yes.

Again, those are drafts, but

yes.
MR. DILL:

17

Okay, sir.

I understand.

And

18

then based on that, we use some -- we do some prorations

19

in order to determine the appropriate FRC for the larger

20

water meters.

21

MR. BAKER:

22

MR. DILL:

23
24
25

That's correct.
Can you go over that, please,

how that was done?
MR. BAKER:

Absolutely, yes.

So there are

some standard formulas that are out there, industry
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1

standard for the amount of consumption that is expected

2

from different meters, but there's also a wealth of data

3

for your actual system.

4

And for the smaller meter sizes where you have

5

numerous customers at those meter sizes, we used the

6

average metered water use and did a ratio from the

7

average for a 5/8 meter to the larger meter size.

8
9

So for meter sizes 5/8 through 2 inches, that
was the basis for the calculation.
MR. DILL:

10
11

So that's just based on a

cross-sectional area?
MR. BAKER:

12

I'm sorry.

For those meter

13

sizes it's based on the actual average metered

14

consumption, not meter size.
MR. DILL:

15

Okay.

What I'd like to see in

16

this table, too, as you mentioned, there's a large

17

number of users for the smaller meters.

18

know -- and have another column on this table to

19

indicate the number of data points that are used to

20

generate that average.
MR. BAKER:

21

So yeah.

I'd like to

Oh, absolutely, yeah, yeah.

I

22

can add that.

So that's based off of the

23

average for those ones.

24

recognize that there were not enough customers -- or not

25

enough data points to have a reasonable average.

For larger the meter sizes, we
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1

we used -- that was for -- it was for those larger meter

2

sizes that we used the AWWA flow factor which is just

3

based on the cross-sectional area and the flow capacity

4

that that meter can support.

5

MR. DILL:

6

MR. BAKER:

Okay.
I will certainly add to that

7

Table C-8 a column indicating the number of accounts

8

that that average was based on.
MR. DILL:

9

Okay.

10

MR. NISHIMURA:

11

MR. DILL:

12

MR. NISHIMURA:

May I?

Yeah, go ahead.
You mentioned that the 3-

13

to 8-inch meter sizes is based on cross-sectional area.

14

Now, is that based on comparing that against a 5/8-inch

15

meter or against the 2-inch meter?
MR. BAKER:

16

The 3- and 8-inch ones were

17

compared based on cross-sectional areas against the

18

2-inch.

19

average metered water use for 5/8 to the 2-inch, and

20

then used the 2-inch essentially as an index.

21

the ratios for the 3-, 4-, 6-, and 8-inch sizes are

22

indexed to the 2-inch size.

23

So we used -- what we did is we used the

MR. DILL:

Okay.

And so

My next question is, you

24

have a note there that for the 3/4- and 1-inch meters

25

the averages were skewed by outliers, so you adjusted
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1

the ratio to compensate.

2

adjustment?
MR. BAKER:

3

How did you make that

There were in the -- I believe

4

it was the last two years of data.

There were some --

5

the numbers in the data that we received from -- in the

6

fill-frequency analysis from Honolulu Board of Water

7

Supply that the data just did not make sense.

8

it was coming up that in those years there were a lot of

9

-- there's an issue where if they -- the result was that

It was --

10

the 3/4-inch average was coming up dramatically high

11

relative to both the 5/8 and the 1-inch and so we

12

deleted those outliers in the calculation.

13

MR. DILL:

14

MR. BAKER:

Okay.

So --

So the ratio is not the -- the

15

average was adjusted by deleting those outliers.

16

the straight average.
MR. DILL:

17

Okay.

Now, when I look at the

18

gallons-per-day column -- well, hang on a moment.

19

me --

20
21
22

MR. BAKER:

Let

Yeah, so the gallons-per-day

column is the actual straight average number.
MR. DILL:

Okay.

So it looks like to me

23

the 3/4-inch we adjusted down, but the 1-inch we

24

adjusted up, is that right?

25

Not

MR. BAKER:

Yes.

Yes, that's correct.
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1

MR. DILL:

2

MR. BAKER:

3

the data being suspect.

4

MR. DILL:

5

MR. BAKER:

That's interesting.
Yeah, that was an issue about
And we -Okay, and that's -It was our engineering judgment

6

to delete certain outliers to provide that.

7

could do there to clarify that is improvise, show the

8

revised number in the gallons-per-day column.
MR. DILL:

9
10

MR. BAKER:

12

MR. DILL:

Yes.
And if you show the adjusted

one, we need to show that as well on the --

14

MR. BAKER:

15

MR. DILL:

16

Yeah, I'd like to see clearly --

you have that note in parentheses two.

11

13

adjusted.

Yeah.

The gallons per day?
Yeah, whether or not that's

But also, what --

17

MR. BAKER:

18

MR. DILL:

Yeah, I can include those.
Over what period of time are you

19

taking this average water use?

20

more longer than that?

21

But what we

MR. BAKER:

Is this a full year or

Offhand, it was -- I believe

22

was for a four-year period, but I'm not certain on that.

23

So I can confirm and get back to you.

24
25

MR. DILL:

Okay.

Thanks.

I would like

that shown on chart, please, too, on the final report.
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MR. BAKER:

1
2

It was either -- I believe it

was either a three- or four-year period.
MR. DILL:

3

Okay.

And then the 8-inch water

4

meter size, the data appears to be way off.

5

assume that's just we have a very small data group

6

there.

7

MR. CRADDICK:

8

MR. BAKER:

9

Yeah, I think, if I recall

MR. CRADDICK:

There's only two meters.

They're for the airport.
MR. BAKER:

12
13

8-inch, only two meters.

correctly, there are --

10
11

And I

Yeah, I was going to say fewer

than five.

14

THE WITNESS:

The airport and the harbors.

15

MR. BAKER:

16

MR. CRADDICK:

Very small data set.
And they have fire flow that

17

goes through their meters.

18

much larger than it would otherwise have to be.

19

MR. DILL:

So the meter is necessarily

Okay.

It would be good to have

20

some explanation on that because that data obviously is

21

out of whack, but there's a reason for it, I understand.

22

MR. BAKER:

Yeah, I'll add a note there

23

that clarifies that.

For those larger size meters,

24

what's often the case is that while their metered

25

consumption may be lower than what they could be
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1

consuming, you still have to provide a system that can

2

support the capacity that they have essentially paid

3

for.

4

tends to be a variance between what the meter

5

consumption is and what the capacity that they could be

6

consuming is.

7

factors, because it represents the amount of capacity

8

that they could demand and thus the system has to be

9

built for it.

That's why for the larger meter sizes where there

That's why we deferred to using the AWWA

10

MR. CRADDICK:

11

MR. DILL:

12

MR. CRADDICK:

Larry, can I ask?

Go ahead.
Andy, this is David

13

Craddick.

14

But after Larry identified that one there, I know

15

something is going on with our airport here where they

16

want to increase their capacity.

17

do it within the meter that they have.

18

agreement with them where they have to limit their

19

capacity on the meters.

20

they have to pay for it.

21

I'm sorry I never brought this up before.

They can quite easily
We have an

So if they want more capacity,

What would we do?

Just use the unit numbers

22

for source, storage and transmission and multiply it

23

times that additional capacity that they need and come

24

up with a special fee for them?

25

using the same size meter.

Because they'd still be
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MR. BAKER:

1

That would probably be an

2

appropriate approach as long as you account -- so what

3

are they using the -- you would need to account not just

4

for their average, but also for the peak that they would

5

put on the system.

6

Table C-8.

So you can see further up on that

MR. CRADDICK:

7

Well, actually that was my

8

next question is, is I notice you're only doing the

9

average and not the peak.

10

system for the peak.
MR. BAKER:

11
12

And yet we have to build

Well, for source and storage it

does factor for the peak.

13

MR. CRADDICK:

14

MR. BAKER:

15

Okay.

So it includes the 1.5 for the

max daily demand.

16

MR. CRADDICK:

17

MR. DILL:

18

MR. BAKER:

Okay.

Max daily, but not peak.
Yeah, when you calculate that,

19

you would want to make sure that you use that same

20

formula.

21

calculating for the peak and not the average.

For source and storage, you apply -- we're

22

MR. CRADDICK:

23

MR. NISHIMURA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Going back to that same

24

question.

If the 3-inch through 8-inch FRC charges are

25

based on potential flow, should that not have already be
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1

accounted for and why are we charging additional FRC?
MR. CRADDICK:

2

No, it's not accounted for

3

because we gave them a larger meter size than what they

4

needed because of their fire flow requirement.

5

there's an actual payment -MR. NISHIMURA:

6
7

10
11

Did they pay for the FR --

the bigger meter?

8
9

So

MR. CRADDICK:

Gary -- or Gregg.

MR. FUJIKAWA:

I don't know.

Gary.

Gregg.
I have to

check the files so that I can answer that question.

12

MR. DILL:

Go ahead.

13

MR. NISHIMURA:

The primary thing is if we

14

paid for FRC and it's a one-time charge, why are we

15

looking at charging another FRC just because they

16

require more capacity?

17

MR. BAKER:

Yeah.

If there's an existing

18

agreement that limits their capacity, my expectation

19

would be that maybe they had an agreement to pay a

20

reduced FRC at the time, but that's probably something

21

that there should be records on.

22

that's a good consideration is to confirm that if they

23

-- if they did pay the full FRC for an 8-inch meter,

24

then, yeah, that's something that's probably worth

25

looking at more in particular for a special case.

But you're right, that
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MR. DILL:

1

See, our rules committee is

2

currently reviewing all of our FRC application of fees,

3

and I think that's a good subject for them to look at in

4

how these FRCs are actually applied.

5

maybe a subject more for them perhaps than for us.
MR. CRADDICK:

6
7

Yeah, I put the note down in

here.
MR. DILL:

8
9

So I think that's

And as you may have mentioned

earlier, it may good that the rules committee adopt the

10

rules before we adopt these new charges.

11

decide that as well.
MR. CRADDICK:

12

We'll have to

Well, when Andy was

13

explaining that phase-in, you know, keep in mind the

14

longer we wait -- because this will work.

15

works now as it is.

16

know, where we're required to maybe pay the development

17

fee plus put the improvements in or bond them.

18

that's awkward.

19

I mean, it

But we do have the problem, you

And

But myself, you know, the longer we delay, the

20

more likely we're not going to be able to collect the

21

money that we need to pay the fees.

22

push on that side a little bit more on the rules side to

23

get moving.

24
25

And we just need to

I think after the presentation, the last
presentation, I think they understand a little bit more
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1

the necessity to do it.

2

of a feeling that, nah, we didn't really need to do it.

3

It's okay the way it is.

4

think that feeling has changed a little.

5

MR. DILL:

6

MR. BAKER:

Whereas I think there was kind

Now, I think that the -- I

Okay.
Yeah.

And, I mean, the

7

phase-in period is something that merits some

8

consideration.

9

sounds -- I was surprised when David told me that it was

Because there is -- to me four years

10

over a four-year period.

11

time.

It's a very long period of

MR. CRADDICK:

12

Andy, I just threw that out

13

there so the board would have something to look at, you

14

know, that this was a critical issue.

And I hadn't

15

really thought much about the timing.

It was just easy

16

to divide a hundred percent by four.

17

MR. BAKER:

Right, right.

18

MR. CRADDICK:

It's just as easy to divide

19

100 percent by four 6-months' periods and move it down

20

to two years, too, so.
MR. BAKER:

21
22

Yeah.

I mean, that's something

that --

23

MR. CRADDICK:

24

MR. BAKER:

25

MR. CRADDICK:

I mean, six months is six --

I don't know at what point -Six months is certainly more
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1

than ample time to put in a lateral and take your meter,

2

but ...
MR. BAKER:

3

Yeah, yeah, yeah.

I mean, I

4

don't know at what point you get input from the

5

development community on that issue.
MR. CRADDICK:

6

But I would be --

We could get swamped

7

staff-wise.

I see some faces on the staff here.

If a

8

bunch of people -- you know, hundreds of people came in

9

wanting to put laterals in all at once.

I mean,

10

staff-wise we might be a little pressed.

11

to get outside help for the rush, you know, that may be

12

what we have to do.

13

MR. BAKER:

14

MR. CRADDICK:

15

MR. DILL:

But if we had

Yeah.
If we see that happening.

Andy, a couple of other

16

questions.

In a couple of the tables you've got a note,

17

at least in the version that I was looking at, that

18

total differs from totals in Appendix D because of the

19

Grove Farm project.

20

project that had affect on this?

So how did you treat the Grove Farm

MR. BAKER:

21

Let me find that note on that.

22

Oh, that was a reference to the -- to the sum that was

23

rolled in.

24

tables, and the Grove Farm project was not included in

25

those appendix tables because they had been prepared

There are in the report a number of appendix
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1

separately from the analysis related to Grove Farm

2

project.

3

So the Grove Farm on these tables, for example,

4

you see on C-1, the calculation was done the same way as

5

for any other project.

6

amount of new capacity that it would provide and what

7

percent of that capacity was for new growth versus

8

existing system needs.

It looked at the costs, the

So it wasn't treated in this calculation any

9
10

differently.

The note was to clarify that there was a

11

-- that there was a consistency difference with other

12

appendix tables.
MR. CRADDICK:

13

Andy, one other issue, too,

14

is once this fee goes in place, we would be able to

15

replace capacity that we take from existing development

16

agreements that we have such as Kukuiula and Grove Farm.

17

So right now just by simply opening a valve, we can take

18

a lot more water and bring it into the system and give

19

that water out to people.
It's just that we have to be able to replace

20
21

it.

So the minute we start doing that, we would have to

22

start planning to build a new treatment plant there or

23

expand the existing plant.

24

And I guess that's why this is in here, Larry.

25

Because, I think, right away, you know, we're not going
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1

to have the new fee in place, have excess water that

2

Grove Farm is not using and not give it out if we can

3

replace it.
We just start planning for building a new

4
5

treatment plant and give the water out and just make

6

sure when Grove Farm needs the water that it's there.
MR. DILL:

7
8

And is that the case because the

department doesn't own that source?
MR. CRADDICK:

9

Well, it's not that we don't

10

own it.

It's because we have an agreement that it goes

11

to their projects.

12

100 percent, and they're not going to build out 100

13

percent on the first day, then the capacity is there.

14

So we can use it as easily as they can provided we can

15

replace it so it's there when they need it.

But if they don't build out

16

MR. DILL:

Okay.

17

MR. CRADDICK:

And that goes for Kukuiula

18

also.

We've got to bunch of wells out there that are

19

not being used anywhere near capacity.

20

will not build out for many, many year.

21

would we go put more wells in right now?

22

we wouldn't.

23

a limit, then we would at least have the money coming

24

into this fee where we could go and put in additional

25

wells.

We know Kukuiula
So, you know,
You know, no,

We would use that up and as we approached
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1

MR. DILL:

2

MR. CRADDICK:

3

MR. DILL:

4

When it was necessary?
Yes.

And we have the same sort of

agreements with Kukuiula that we have with Grove Farm?
MR. CRADDICK:

5

Believe it or not, Kukuiula

6

has given us those facilities without an agreement.

7

They have been wanting to get an agreement, and we'll

8

have to get an agreement with them for that.

9

mean, that's certainly the understanding that they gave

But, I

10

us those facilities for their build-out, and I think

11

everybody knows that here.

12

we accepted the facilities, that they're giving those

13

facilities with the understanding that they will get

14

the --

15

MR. DILL:

16

MR. CRADDICK:

And they did say that when

Serve their development?
Yeah, capacity when they

17

need it.

18

agreement, if you will, right now, which does need to be

19

memorialized.
MR. DILL:

20
21

24
25

Anybody else have any more

questions for Andy?
I've got a question for you, Andy, on Table

22
23

So that one there is kind of a gentlemen's

C-6.
MR. BAKER:

C6, yes.

One moment.

guessing on this portion of the table.
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MR. DILL:

1
2

Yes.

In the box, lines 25, 26,

27, could you explain that, please?
MR. BAKER:

3

Yes.

So the state statute

4

requires this -- I'm glad you asked about this because

5

this is a complicated issue because it requires that we

6

do an -- the statute requires that we do an analysis

7

that identifies what portion of the rates that a new

8

customer will be paying will be going to source and

9

storage, repair and replacement projects, existing

10

deficiencies and debt service on existing facilities.

11

And that we then take the -- I calculate the

12

present value of those rate payments over a 20-year

13

horizon.

14

the present value of the unit costs, a great revenue for

15

R&R, existing deficiencies and existing debt, that is

16

calculated on a per GPD basis in line 24.

17

And so what we're doing is we are calculating

So we have it for the known study period.

18

Because we just completed the rate study, we have more

19

accurate numbers.

20

of the 20-year period that we're required to look it

21

over, we just did the six-year average because we really

22

had no better information than that.

23

For the period -- for the remainder

Doing really detailed 20-year projections is a

24

little suspect.

So the best information we have is to

25

take the average of those of what it is over that
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1

six-year period.

And then we're taking the present

2

value of the individual -- I'm not sure if you can see

3

my mouse pointer when I'm moving this around or not.
But we take the present value of these dollars

4
5

per GPD metered consumption.

6

That's the 20-year present value at a nominal discount

7

rate of six percent.
MR. DILL:

8
9

That's what the 488 is.

It would help me to see the

actual calculation, Andy.
MR. BAKER:

10

Okay.

I can send -- I think I

11

sent to David the Excel spreadsheet with all the cells.

12

And he can -- he could provide that to you.
MR. CRADDICK:

13
14

that.

You have the Excel format for this.

15

MR. DILL:

16

MR. CRADDICK:

17
18

I think, Larry, you have

Okay.
I take that back.

I might

have sent it to Randy and not you.
MR. BAKER:

Yeah.

So the -- and the Excel

19

formula is -- the calculation is fairly strict.

20

there's a function in Excel to calculate net present

21

value of a series of values.

22

a period of 20 years of these values and it calculates

23

what the net present value is.

24
25

MR. CRADDICK:

So

And so we just -- we take

Larry, your question here

that you're asking is another, I think, important reason
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1

on this phase-in because if people pay a fee and then

2

they don't take the meter, they're not helping to pay

3

down this debt service that this credit is given for.

4

So they're getting a credit and yet they never put the

5

meter in, they never use water.

6

phase those things out and make them pay the higher fee,

7

the more likelihood that we're going to make it with a

8

lower number.
MR. BAKER:

9

Yeah.

And so the quicker we

So these calculations

10

all work on the assumption that someone -- a developer

11

pays the fee, puts the meter in within a nominal time

12

frame.
MR. CRADDICK:

13
14
15

And that's not happening

here.
MR. BAKER:

And there are issues for the

16

finances of the department as a whole, is if there's a

17

very large lag, and David was mentioning to me that

18

there are some people that have paid an FRC ten years

19

ago and haven't installed the meter.

20

the department is obligated to build a system once they

21

accept that FRC payment to support -- to provide that

22

capacity even if somebody doesn't then put the meter in.

23

But the system --

So there's a -- there's then -- then they're

24

not paying the service charge, which is supposed to go

25

to cover that system capacity -- the O&M on that
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1

system's capacity.

So there are implications for having

2

those cases where people put -- pay the FRC and then

3

just sit on it.

4

for the department to get the FRC and then not have to

5

ever provide the capacity.

It's not a revenue positive situation

MR. DILL:

6

Okay.

So if our rules committee

7

establishes rules where folks who pay an FRC sit on the

8

meter, the department decides to refund the FRC if no

9

meter is installed in 12 months or something like that,

10

would that address that concern and would that affect

11

the way your doing this calculation?
MR. BAKER:

12

It would not have an impact on

13

the calculation to answer that part of the question.

14

Because, again, as I said, this calculation -- there

15

isn't a good analytical model for how to deal with

16

people acting that way because it's not -- it's not

17

typical for developers to do that.

18

anomaly.

It's sort of an

So it wouldn't affect the calculation because

19
20

the calculation doesn't assume that that's going on

21

right now.

22

deal with it.

That would be potentially one approach to

There is a -- the other way that it could be

23
24

addressed, and I'm not sure if it makes more or less

25

sense.

It's more of a policy question than a finance
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1

question.

Is that to put a clause in the rules stating

2

that once someone -- once the developer does elect to

3

install the meter, they'd be required to pay the

4

difference in whatever they originally paid and the

5

current FRC.
So if they sat on this FRC charge for five

6
7

years or something, then you could have them pay the

8

difference in between what they previously paid if they

9

haven't installed it after 12 or 18 months or something

10

like that.
You give them -- they pay it, you give them

11
12

12 months to install the meter.

13

than that, then if rates have gone up, then you charge

14

the difference at time of meter installation.

15

MR. DILL:

16

MR. CRADDICK:

If they take longer

Do you have a question?
Andy, just for clarification

17

sake here.

18

whether, you know, after this work is done if we need an

19

auditor to check it over.

20

with you.

21

the board.

22

department.

23

working for the board, right?

24
25

An issue came up during our audit on

And I just wanted to confirm

I believe the contract that you have is with
It's not with the staff of the water
It's with the board, and you're actually

MR. BAKER:

I believe so, but I will

confirm that for you.
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1

MR. CRADDICK:

2

MR. DILL:

3

MR. BAKER:

4

MR. DILL:

5

FRC revenue.

6

rate analysis?

7

numbers?

9

So on Table 6, Andy.
Yes.
Line 15, you have less projected

Was that projection taken from the water
Or where did you come up with those

MR. BAKER:

8

Okay.

water rate analysis.

Yeah, that's taken from the

Because the projection period

10

here, the through 2016 is taken from the water rate

11

analysis.

12

were in there so we were consistent.

13

MR. DILL:

14

MR. BAKER:

15
16

And so I used -- we used the numbers that

Right, okay.
There wasn't a new projection

of what revenues were going to be.
MR. DILL:

Okay.

I would appreciate -- you

17

have a note in some places where you've taken -- could

18

you just make sure, please, you put a post where you

19

pulled stuff from the water rate study, that you add

20

that notation?

21

You have it in some places.

MR. BAKER:

There was a note here that the

22

source was for the water rate study.

23

that, yeah, all of these -- that projection period was

24

based off the water rate study.

25

MR. DILL:

Okay.

But I'll clarify

Thanks.

You have it on
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1

some lines but not others, so I was just curious on that

2

one.
MR. BAKER:

3
4

Yeah, yeah, that's unclear.

I

apologize for that.
MR. DILL:

5

And actually -- and in your

6

notes at the bottom of that, I don't know if you -- in

7

trying to follow your notes at the bottom, I think it's

8

just a housekeeping thing, on lines four, five and six

9

you reference -- you reference lines.

10

the wrong lines, so it made it kind of hard to follow.
MR. BAKER:

11
12

there.

13

Yeah.

Oh, yeah, I think you're right

I'll check on that.

14

MR. DILL:

15

MR. NISHIMURA:

16

I apologize for that.

Thank you.
Can you explain what the

lines 23 and 24, how you derived those numbers?
MR. BAKER:

17

Yes.

18

up the calculations themselves.

19

this works here.

20

to the wrong point.

21

22.

22

hard to see.

23

I think they're

And, in fact, I can pull
I have to make sure

Yeah, that's where the note is pointed
It should be saying lines 21 and

Is that coming through okay?

It might be a little

I'm not sure.

But the dollars per kilogram -- or per

24

kilogallon, apologize, is the -- is taking line 21 rate

25

revenue calculation divided by the systemwide water
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1

sales.

That gives a unit basis for rate revenue for

2

these deficiencies per kilogallon.

3

per gallon per day is done by dividing based on version

4

two taking the gallons divided by days.
MR. NISHIMURA:

5

And then the dollars

Does that mean from a

6

budgetary standpoint that we should be using those

7

numbers for primarily our replacement of whatever it

8

might be, source, storage or transmission, and lock that

9

up from a budgetary standpoint?
MR. BAKER:

10
11

Lock that up in terms of

putting it into a separate fund or?
MR. NISHIMURA:

12

Or setting it aside

13

specifically for that purpose as opposed to allowing

14

operations to access that money.
MR. BAKER:

15

I don't think that that would

16

be necessarily appropriate.

17

disinclined to say -- I mean, these are sort of average

18

numbers is the idea.

19

characterization of what goes on on an average basis.

20

But in some years you may need to do a lot of repair and

21

replacement because it just becomes necessary.

We're trying to get a

MR. NISHIMURA:

22

I mean, I would be

No, I understand that.

But

23

what I'm saying is that from an operation standpoint,

24

should that monies be kind of separated from operations

25

use?
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MR. CRADDICK:

1
2

You're talking about the

deficiencies money, Randy?

3

MR. NISHIMURA:

4

MR. CRADDICK:

Yes.
Andy, what I'm gathering or

5

I hope he's saying is should this money that we identify

6

here be going over to the FRC charge because these are

7

deficiencies -MR. NISHIMURA:

8
9

No, that's not because

those are rate generated monies.
MR. CRADDICK:

10

No, no, they are, but

11

they're for deficiencies, meaning that we gave capacity

12

to people that we didn't have capacity for, and now

13

everybody's having to pay for that.

14

the FRC fee below what we need in order to provide those

15

facilities.

But we're reducing

So if we put that over to the FRC fund and

16
17

build the facilities that the deficits were intended,

18

then you're getting the full FRC charge and not charging

19

the new expanded for the fact that we allowed people to

20

get on the system without having adequate capacity.
MR. NISHIMURA:

21

I've got to think about

22

that one.

23

-- maybe that's not the term that they should be using.

24
25

Because it's replacement or maybe that's the

MR. CRADDICK:

Are you saying it's

replacement in here, Andy, or just deficit?
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MR. BAKER:

1
2

It's all three of those things

together.

3

MR. CRADDICK:

4

MR. BAKER:

Okay, okay.

It's expenses for repair and

5

replacement, projects for existing deficiencies and

6

existing outstanding indebtedness.

7

the calculation is that a new customer pays a fee.

8

should be -- they're paying for the full cost of their

9

capacity, but they are joining into a system that has

And so the intent of
They

10

existing outstanding debt and that sort of thing, and so

11

the credit is to --

12
13

MR. CRADDICK:

But none of the debt is for

the transmission, storage or source.

14

MR. BAKER:

I'm sorry.

15

MR. CRADDICK:

Repeat that.

None of the debt is for

16

source, transmission or storage.

17

they're paying for is line replacement, and that is --

18

you know, everybody gets their turn in there.

19

The only debt that

That's kind of why -- that's one problem I've

20

been having with this thing here where you give that

21

credit because they are not paying the debt.

22

is going on to the FRC.

23
24
25

MR. BAKER:

That debt

Well, no, but there's existing

outstanding debt in-MR. CRADDICK:

But not for storage,
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1

transmission and source.

2

be paying.

Not that the ratepayers will

Let's put it that way.

3

MR. NISHIMURA:

4

MR. CRADDICK:

5

MR. NISHIMURA:

6

Yes, we are.
Like what?
Like the reserve we're

setting up.
MR. CRADDICK:

7
8

funded from the FRC, too.

9

will come out of the FRC.

The reserve is partially
Whatever is expansion related

MR. NISHIMURA:

10

A part of that is, but the

11

bulk of that reserve is coming out of the rate

12

structure.
MR. CRADDICK:

13
14

that money -MR. NISHIMURA:

15
16

It is because the bulk of

You cannot use that for

anything else.
MR. CRADDICK:

17

Yeah, but the bulk of it is

18

for system replacement.

19

two-thirds of the BAB is for system replacement, not for

20

expansion.

21

I mean, three-quarters or

Anyways, that's one of the issues that we're

22

still working with them on to get that cleared up.

23

that -- I still don't believe we've covered that

24

properly yet.

25

MR. NISHIMURA:

Is the BAB going to be
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1

added into this?
MR. CRADDICK:

2

The expansion related BAB

3

debt and principal will be added.

4

are listed here.

5

there, too, the interest payments in there.

7

But that should be only for

expansion related.
MR. CRADDICK:

8
9

So we just need to get the debt in

MR. NISHIMURA:

6

Well, the projects

related.

Yeah, only expansion

So it's only $20 million of the debt, and that

10

would be adjusted, you know, if we don't spend the full

11

20 million, then that will get adjusted.

12

Right now what we have is the BAB, the SRF that

13

is expansion related, and the -- and then ten percent of

14

all the rest of the projects are supposed to be shown as

15

being debt financed in here.

16

MR. NISHIMURA:

17

MR. CRADDICK:

18
19
20
21

But they're -And coming out of this FRC

fund, not out of the ratepayers.
MR. NISHIMURA:

I thought SRF cannot be

used for expansion.
MR. CRADDICK:

No, no, no.

Technically is

22

can't, but we did, and we've gone over that with the

23

auditor and the state.

24

expansion related for us, the state doesn't consider

25

them expansion related.

And even though they're

So they don't care where the
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1

money comes from as long as they get paid.
And we -- after going over this at length with

2
3

the auditor, the auditor felt that it was okay what we

4

were doing, and they don't care where the money comes

5

from to pay that debt service on the SRF related

6

projects.
But the stable tank, the tank out in Waimea

7
8

that we just built is definitely for expansion.

I mean,

9

that's how we were able to cancel the restrictions out

10

in Waimea was because we built that tank.

And it's

11

definitely expansion related, and the FRC is paying for

12

that.
That was the adjustment that we did on our

13
14

audit two years ago, paying all the back -- paying into

15

the water rates from the FRC fund all of the stuff that

16

the rates had paid for from the time the loans were

17

issued.
So the FRC has already reimbursed the water

18
19

ratepayer for all that back debt service that they paid

20

into.

21

to Beck yet.

And I'm not certain we've explained that properly

So we still will need to work on these numbers,

22
23

but I was hoping to get a buy-in of the process here

24

today.

25

subject to getting the projects in here and correct

That this is the process that they've used and
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1

party paying for the debt service, that you accept the

2

process, how they did it.
MR. DILL:

3
4

So you're looking for acceptance

of the methodology, the approach?
MR. CRADDICK:

5

Yeah, that's pretty much.

6

If we can do that today, I think we'll have covered a

7

great amount of ground.
MR. DILL:

8
9

lot of information.
MR. CRADDICK:

10
11

Speaking for myself, this is a

Yeah, it is.

I mean, you

know, I don't expect to see some motion, you know.

12

MR. DILL:

Right.

13

MR. CRADDICK:

If there's an understanding

14

that that's what it is.

I expect maybe as you read it a

15

little bit, there may be more comments to come back even

16

yet.

17

both yourself and Clyde are new.

18

big -- a lot to absorb over an hour.

But this is kind of the first go-round because

19

MR. NISHIMURA:

20

MR. DILL:

And so, yes, this is a

I think it deserves more.

Yeah, I guess I could say

21

preliminarily I think I'm comfortable --

22

MR. CRADDICK:

Are we finished with Andy

23

here now, maybe, and can let him go?

24

MR. DILL:

25

MR. CRADDICK:

Any more questions for Andy?
Okay.

Andy, thanks then.
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1

guess we're pau now, and we've got to do some internal

2

soul searching now.
MR. BAKER:

3
4

Yeah, yeah.

I'll

talk to you later.

5

MR. CRADDICK:

6

MR. BAKER:

7

All right.

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.
Thank you for

giving me the opportunity to speak to you all today.

8

MR. DILL:

9

MR. OYAMA:

Thank you.

10

MR. BAKER:

I'm going to shut down web

11
12
13
14
15

Thank you.

stuff now.
MR. CRADDICK:
Yeah.

No.

Okay.

Thank you.

You know, I don't expect to hear a

motion that this is it, cut and dried.
MR. DILL:

No.

We have a lot of work left

16

to do here, I can see on this.

17

presentation was given and the information provided, you

18

know, I don't feel comfortable.

19

could say that on a preliminary basis I have somewhat of

20

a grasp of the approach methodology, and I think I'm

21

comfortable with that.

22

And when the

I guess I would -- I

But that's subject to a lot more review still

23

and a better understanding on my part of all the

24

numbers, et cetera.

25

can do today other than receive this and to defer for

So I'm not sure what the committee
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1

further discussion.

2

MR. CRADDICK:

3

MR. DILL:

Okay.

Can I -- any other discussion

4

for the committee or?

5

something along those lines.

I'll entertain a motion to do

MR. NAKAYA:

6

That's probably good.

Mr. Chair, I'd like to make a

7

motion to receive the data that we received today and

8

defer it to a committee meeting for more discussion.
MR. DILL:

9
10

All right.

Thank you.

second?

11

MR. OYAMA:

12

MR. DILL:

Second.
Any further discussion?

13

All in favor signify by saying aye.

14

All opposed?

15

Hearing none, the motion is approved.

16

MR. CRADDICK:

17

MR. DILL:

18

Thank you.

And I think that we can probably

entertain a motion to adjourn.

19

MR. NAKAYA:

20

MR. OYAMA:

21

MR. DILL:

22

Have a

So moved.
Second.
All opposed.

Hearing none.

Thank you.

23

(Concluded at approximately 10:08 a.m.,

24

February 29, 2012.)

25

* * * * *
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